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INTRODUCTION  

Statement of Compliance 
To the Minister responsible for the Department of Culture and the Arts 

Dear Minister 

In accordance with Section 61 of the Financial Management Act 2006 I hereby submit, for your 
information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the Department of Culture and the 
Arts for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.  This report has been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 and all other legislation including: 

 Disability Services Act 1993 

 Electoral Act 1907 

 Equal Opportunity Act 1984 

 Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 

 Public Sector Management Act 1994 

 State Records Act 2000. 

At the date of signing, I am not aware of any circumstances that would render the particulars 
included in the report misleading or inaccurate. 

 

 

Duncan Ord OA  

Director General 

10 September 2015 
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Director General’s foreword  
The Department of Culture and Arts (DCA) aims to bring benefits across the community by helping to 
provide quality cultural and arts activities, so DCA was proud to partner with Lotterywest and Tourism 
WA to administer the State Government investment to assist in bringing French street theatre 
company Royal de Luxe and The Giants to Perth as part of WA’s Centenary of World War 1 
commemorations.  

The Giants opened the Perth International Arts Festival (PIAF) and drew more than 1.4 million people 
into the city centre to see this remarkable event unfold over three days. During the event, DCA  was 
able to use the new Culture Counts system, to capture, analyse and report public, peer and artistic 
feedback, to better enable us to quantify the impact and value of cultural and arts activities.   

In October 2014, the Minister for Culture and Arts launched the Department’s Regional Arts and 
Cultural Action Plan during the 2014 Regional Arts Australia Summit: Arts & Edges in Kalgoorlie-Boulder. 
The Plan will guide the new Creative Regions program which received $24 million over four years in 
funding through the State Government’s Royalties for Regions to increase regional arts and cultural 
activity around the State.     

The National Anzac Centre (the Centre) was opened in Albany on 1 November, 2014 by the 
Australian and New Zealand Prime Ministers Tony Abbott and John Key. In addition to the unique 
content developed by the Western Australian Museum and the Australian War Memorial, a major 
new public artwork on the associated walkway is proving to be a popular attraction.   

The artwork, Longing, Memory, Sight was commissioned under the State Government’s Percent for Art 
Scheme, managed through a partnership between DCA and the Department of Finance’s Building 
Management and Works. The artwork commemorates the Anzac Centenary and is inspired by stories 
of soldiers who cast messages to loved ones sealed in bottles over the sides of their ships while 
awaiting departure from King George Sound. 

The 2014-15 year saw many outstanding DCA funded outcomes for the community.  In addition to The 
Giants , PIAF together with Melbourne Festival, commissioned Barking Gecko Theatre Company and 
Opera Australia, in association with the WA Opera, to present  The Rabbits. Based on the book by 
John Marsden and illustrated by Shaun Tan, the production had a sell-out season in Perth and went 
on to win several Helpmann Awards. 

The 2014 Telstra Perth Fashion Festival continued to provide emerging and established WA designers 
opportunities to present to national and international audience. This flagship event is an important 
feature in the fashion calendar as it showcases of the work of our local fashion designers and fashion 
design students. 

The Fringe World Festival continued to grow from last year’s success. This year saw 2,626 artists perform 
at 556 events in 115 venues, with over 660,000 people attending free and ticketed events. Over $6.4 
million was generated from the 258,000 tickets sold. 

In April, FORM presented the second instalment of their multi-year festival PUBLIC  –  an opportunity for 
local, interstate and international artists to engage with and transform WA. International leaders in the 
arts, architecture, urban planning, technology and philanthropy explored the value of creativity in 
building dynamic places at a symposium. Labs and workshop, openings, parties, film screenings and 
exhibitions complemented the symposium; and urban artists transformed streets and walls in 
metropolitan Perth, the Wheatbelt and the Pilbara.  
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These examples are just a small section of the overall support DCA provides through its funding of 
organisations and/or initiatives.  It delivers on our vision to support the arts and culture sector, 
increasing the community’s access to a range of arts and cultural experiences, which in turn enriches 
the overall WA community.  

In closing, I would like to thank the Minister for Culture and Arts for his support over the year, and to 
express my appreciation to the Boards, CEOs and staff of the Portfolio organisations for their 
continued assistance. 

I would like to express my thanks and appreciation to our many partners across the public and private 
sectors, particularly Lotterywest, the Department of Regional Development and the Chamber of Arts 
and Culture WA, all of whom provide significant support in so many areas of our work.  

 To DCA and SRO staff and the respective executives, it has been an eventful and challenging year 
and I thank them for their support and hard work as we continue the work of examining our 
operations over the year ahead, to the benefit of the sector and the Culture and Arts Portfolio. 

Duncan Ord OAM 

Director General 

Executive Summary 
This report is structured in accordance with the Public Sector Commission’s Annual Reporting 
Framework 2015 and provides a detailed account of DCA’s activities over the 2014-15 year.  

DCA released a new Strategic Plan in January 2015.  DCA’s role, vision, values and key priorities as 
articulated in the Strategic Plan is outlined in Section 1, along with an overview of DCA’s operational 
structure and performance management framework. 

Development of the new Strategic Plan provided an opportunity for DCA to define corporate 
objectives aligned with government desired outcomes and direct attention to strategic initiatives best 
able deliver on both the government’s and DCA’s own priorities for the arts and cultural sector.  
Progress to date on each strategic initiative is reported under agency performance in Section 2. Also 
in this section we report on the outcomes of other priority DCA projects, including initiatives 
highlighted in DCA’s 2013-14 Annual Report.  

In September 2014, DCA established an Arts Leadership Group (ALG) to guide the long-term strategic 
direction and development of arts and culture in Western Australia, and set the infrastructure, policy 
and funding priorities for consideration by successive State Governments. The ALG has been 
significantly involved in development of the Strategic Directions Framework 2015-2030. A discussion 
paper was released for public comment in April 2015 and the results are now being compiled with a 
view to releasing the final report later in 2015. 

In January 2015, the Perth Theatre Trust (PTT) resumed direct management of a number of key 
performing arts venues including the His Majesty’s Theatre, the State Theatre Centre of WA, the 
Subiaco Arts Centre and the Albany Entertainment Centre, and has been supported by DCA in the 
transition. 

DCA launched two major initiatives that will streamline its operations in the key areas of investment in 
the arts and grants programs.  The new Online Grants system was launched in January 2015 and 
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provides greater access to DCA’s grants programs by prospective applicants, as well as efficiencies 
for DCA in the administration of its funding programs. Also launched in early 2015, the Organisations 
Investment Program is an open and competitive funding program that will replace the Department’s 
multi-year, triennial and annual funding programs from 2016 onwards. 

Work continues to progress on the New Museum project, with several key milestones achieved over 
the past year. The process to appoint a managing contractor is now under way. Conservation work 
on the heritage buildings at the Perth site, as well as work to upgrade the Museum’s Welshpool 
Collections and Research Centre is also ongoing.   

The delivery of DCA’s core services in the areas of grants and funding and state information 
management and archive services by the State Records Office is reported under Core Services in 
Section 2. 

In 2014-15, DCA distributed more than $27 million in funding to bring a vibrant mix of arts and culture 
to Western Australian audiences. This included over $19.5 million in funding to non-government 
organisations and more than $ 7.5  million in grants awarded to individuals, groups and organisations. 
Over 600 funding applications were received during the 2014-15 year.  

The State Records Office (SRO) continued to perform its responsibilities as WA’s public records 
authority under the State Records Act 2000, delivering records management and archival services to 
government agencies, preserving archival records and providing reference services for researchers.  

DCA’s compliance with legislative requirements, public sector standards and other government 
policies are outlined in detail in Section 4. There were no breaches of the public sector standards 
during the year. DCA continues to promote ethical and accountable behaviour in its workforce, 
supplementing public sector codes with relevant internal policies and procedures. DCA developed its 
first Fraud and Corruption Control plan, as well as an Attendance at Events Policy to guide decision 
making and mitigate potential conflicts. 

Evaluation of the Culture and Arts Portfolio’s performance in achieving Government Desired 
outcomes is detailed in Section 5. Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) measure performance at the 
whole of portfolio level, with each organisation’s KPIs contributing to overall performance 
measurement for the portfolio.  The result is a consolidated picture of what the culture and arts 
portfolio is delivering and its impact on the community of Western Australia.  

A comprehensive account of the Portfolio’s financial performance is provided in Section 6. Included 
here are audited financial statements of comprehensive income, financial position, changes in equity 
and cash flows, all of which are accompanied by detailed notes.   
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SECTION 1: AGENCY IN FOCUS  

Profile 
The Department of Culture and the Arts (DCA) guides the delivery of culture and arts for Western 
Australia through the provision of policy development, coordination, arts-based private and public 
partnerships, and support services to the Culture and Arts Portfolio. The DCA also supports the State’s 
culture and the arts sector through grants across a broad range of art forms.  

DCA is part of the Culture and Arts Portfolio which includes: 

 the Art Gallery of Western Australia (a statutory authority) 

 Perth Theatre Trust (a statutory authority) 

 ScreenWest (an incorporated association) 

 the State Library of Western Australia (a statutory authority) 

 the Western Australian Museum (a statutory authority) 

 the State Records Office of Western Australia (a division of DCA which operates under its own 
Strategic Plan). 

STRATEGY 

The Department of Culture and the Arts Strategic Plan 2015-2017 articulates the role, vision, values 
and key priorities of the organisation. It will steer the Department to achieve the vision through 
realisation of the corporate objectives and the strategies identified over the next three years.  

DCA's Strategic Plan aims to: 

 communicate the purpose, vision and mission of DCA to its stakeholders; 

 communicate measurable strategic objectives for DCA; and 

 provide a framework for operational and business planning, prioritisation and alignment to 
strategic objectives. 

PURPOSE 

The cultural development of Western Australia through the provision of quality services and funding 
programs, and the implementation of Government policies and initiatives.   

VISION  

A valued and respected government agency that has the expertise to support the arts and culture 
sector in enriching the lives of the Western Australian community. 

  



VALUES 

 Professional  

 Innovative 

 Responsive 

Operational Structure 
The Department of the Arts was established under the Public Service Act 1978 on July 1, 1986 
subsequent to the repeal of the Western Australian Arts Council Act 1973. On 20 May 1997 the name 
was changed to the Ministry for Culture and the Arts under the Public Sector Management Act 1994. 
On 1 July 2001 the name was redesignated to Department of Culture and the Arts under Section 35 of 
the Public Sector Management Act 1994 as a result of a Machinery of Government Review. 

The DCA operates under the provisions of the Public Sector Management Act 1994. In the 
performance of its functions, DCA complies with all relevant written laws. DCA links the Culture and 
Arts Portfolio to the Government’s framework and also contributes funding and administrative support 
to The Bell Tower, which is managed by the Swan Bells Foundation Inc. The Portfolio organisations and 
the Swan Bells Foundation Inc. are required to produce separate annual reports. 

RESPONSIBLE MINISTER 

The Hon John Day MLA, Minister for Culture and the Arts. 

LEGISLATION ADMINISTERED 

 Art Gallery Act 1959 

 Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951 

 Museum Act 1969 

 Perth Theatre Trust Act 1979 

 State Records Act 2000 

LEADERSHIP 

The Corporate Executive is DCA’s key strategic leadership, planning and accountability group. It 
provides leadership, direction and guidance to DCA and provides oversight of DCA’s strategy, 
governance and committee structure. It is the peak decision-making body for DCA.  

Director General Duncan Ord 

Acting Deputy Director General David Ansell 

Executive Director, General Operations 

Acting Executive Director, General Operations 

Eric Isailovic (on secondment from 27 Jan);  

Margaret Butcher ( 27 Jan to present) 

State Archivist and Executive Director State Records Cathrin Cassarchis 
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Director, Arts Funding and Development Chris Penwald 

Director, Corporate Affairs Rebecca Coakley 

Director, Finance and Chief Financial Officer Tony Loiacono 

Director, Infrastructure Planning and Support Carl Pekin 

Acting Director, Office of the Director General Lorna Folini 

Director, Policy, Planning and Research Colin Walker 

DIRECTORATES 

Office of the Director General 

The Office of the Director General is responsible for ministerial liaison, government relations, strategic 
and operational planning, Ministerial and performance reporting, project management, business 
improvement, risk management and business continuity. The Office also includes Corporate Affairs 
and Audit and Review.  

General Operations Directorate 

The General Operations Directorate provides strategic and transactional human resource 
management, finance, information technology and infrastructure planning and support services for 
DCA and Portfolio organisations.  

Policy, Planning and Research Directorate 

The Policy, Planning and Research Directorate is responsible for DCA’s policy development, future 
planning, research strategy and strategic partnerships.  The Directorate develops and implements 
interagency Memoranda of Understanding and partnerships; develops, manages and delivers 
research projects and consultancies; undertakes strategic research planning, analysis, reporting and 
dissemination of arts and cultural research and statistics; collection of annual surveys and data; and 
development and delivery of policies and action plans. 

Arts Funding and Development Directorate 

The Arts Funding and Development Directorate is responsible for providing funding to non-
government arts organisations as a base from which they can then generate additional income 
through sponsorship, box office and funding from other bodies to support their annual program of 
activities. The Directorate also provides project funding through its grants programs. These programs 
are designed to provide emerging and established artists and creatives with grants to undertake a 
broad range of projects and activities across multiple art forms and disciplines. Investment in the in 
arts and culture is essential to ensure ongoing access to arts and culture activities. 
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State Records Office 

The State Records Office (SRO) is a division of DCA that operates under its own Strategic Plan. 
Established by the State Records Act 2000, the SRO supports the State Records Commission and 
provides consultancy, advice and training to assist State and Local Government organisations to 
comply with their information management responsibilities. The SRO is also the State’s archival 
authority, with responsibility for collecting, preserving and providing government and community 
access to the State Archives Collection. 

WORKFORCE 

Portfolio Demographics 

Department/Portfolio Organisations Women Men 

Department of Culture and the Arts (including SRO) 97 61 

Art Gallery of Western Australia 50 19 

Perth Theatre Trust 100 76 

ScreenWest 21 5 

State Library of Western Australia 138 53 

Western Australian Museum 164 95 

Total 570 309 

Department of Culture and the Arts headcount as at 30 June 2015 

Employment Type Department of Culture and the Arts 

 Women Men 

Permanent Full-time 58 44 

Permanent Part-time 19 2 

Fixed Term Full-time 8 7 

Fixed Term Part-time 7 6 

Casual paid 0 0 

*Other  5 2 

Total 97 61 

*includes staff on secondment and public sector trainees. 
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Organisational Chart 

 

 
  



Performance Management Framework 
The Portfolio achieves its Government Desired Outcomes through the delivery of seven key services. 
While the Portfolio contributes to all of the Government’s Outcomes Based Service Delivery goals, its 
primary contribution is to the Government goal:  Greater focus on achieving results in key service 
delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians.  The table below illustrates the relationship 
between the Portfolio’s Desired Outcomes and the most relevant Government goal. 

Government goal Desired Outcomes Services Service Provider 

Greater focus on 
achieving results in 
key service areas 
for the benefit of all 
Western Australians 

Outcome 1: 

A creative, 
sustainable and 
accessible culture 
and arts sector 

Arts industry support Department of Culture and 
the Arts 

Screen production 
industry support 

ScreenWest 

Venue management 
services 

Perth Theatre Trust 

Outcome 2: 

Western Australia’s 
natural, cultural and 
documentary 
collections are 
preserved, 
accessible and 
sustainable 

Art Gallery services Art Gallery of Western 
Australia 

Library and information 
services 

State Library of Western 
Australia 

Museum services Western Australian Museum 

Government 
recordkeeping and 
archival services 

Department of Culture and 
the Arts (State Records 
Office) 

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 

DCA’s Strategic Plan 2015-2017 outlines six Corporate Objectives aligned with the Government 
Desired Outcomes for DCA. These Corporate Objectives provide an overarching framework to guide 
the identification, development and delivery of strategic initiatives and priority projects across DCA.  

 

Objective 1 Deliver the State Government’s arts and culture priorities. 

Objective 2  Provide leadership through strong evidence-based policy, planning and legislative 
reform. 

Objective 3  Promote a diverse, vibrant and sustainable cultural sector. 

Objective 4  Ensure effective management of the State Government’s investment in culture and the 
arts. 

Objective 5  Establish efficient and effective business systems and processes. 

Objective 6  Develop a workforce that is engaged, capable, adaptable and agile. 
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SECTION 2: AGENCY PERFORMANCE 

Strategic Initiatives 
DCA’s Strategic Plan 2015-2017 outlines DCA’s corporate objectives and related strategic initiatives 
for the period of the plan.  Progress towards these initiatives is monitored by a senior departmental 
governance committee responsible for DCA’s strategy and performance, and reported to the 
Minister for Culture and the Arts on a monthly basis. 

OBJECTIVE 1: DELIVER THE STATE GOVERNMENT’S ARTS AND CULTURE PRIORITIES 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Deliver on the New Museum 
Project milestones 

The New Museum Project is managed by a team comprising DCA, 
the Western Australian Museum and the Department of Treasury’s 
Strategic Projects and Asset Sales. Key milestones achieved in 2014-15 
include: 

 Endorsement of Project Definition Plan (PDP) by the A/Under 
Treasurer in April 2014. 

 Approval from Government for the inclusion of the centralised 
Energy and Thermal Solution (ETS) for the Perth Cultural Centre 
(PCC), with delivery through the New Museum Project. 

 Endorsement of the Managing Contractor Works – Procurement 
Plan by Government in September 2014. 

 Release of the Expression of Interest (EOI) on 28 January 2015.  

 Endorsement of the Art Procurement Strategy by the Steering 
Committee in May 2015 

 Announcement of EOI Shortlist for managing contractor in June 
2015. 

Establish the Arts Leadership 
Group to provide advice on 
Portfolio objectives and State 
Government initiatives. 

The Arts Leadership Group (ALG) was established in September 2014 
to guide the long-term strategic direction and development of arts 
and culture in Western Australia, and set the infrastructure, policy and 
funding priorities for consideration by successive State Governments. 
The ALG is made up of chief executives and directors general from 
key State Government departments, industry and arts organisations, 
and chaired by the Director General of DCA. Regular meetings of the 
ALG were held throughout the year.  The ALG has been significantly 
involved in the development of the Strategic Directions Framework 
2015-2030. 



Prepare Strategic Directions 
paper for the culture and arts 
sector 2015-2030. 

A Strategic Directions Discussion Paper was released for public 
consultation in April 2015. Feedback was sought from the community 
in relation to the future challenges and opportunities of building and 
sustaining a vibrant arts and cultural sector in Western Australia 
through to 2030. Consultation closed on 22 May 2015 and is being 
considered as the Strategic Directions Framework 2015-2030 is 
finalised.  

Review funding criteria and 
assessment processes to 
ensure merit-based decisions. 

DCA is currently reviewing its grants programs to deliver 
administrative processes that are more efficient and respond to the 
needs of the sector. This includes streamlining panel assessment 
processes; ensuring administration is commensurate with the level of 
grant administered; modernising funding categories and 
standardising application processes. The acquittal process will also 
be commensurate with the level of grant sought.  

Ensure effective 
implementation of the Perth 
Theatre Trust venue 
management model 

In January 2015, the Perth Theatre Trust (PTT) resumed direct 
management control of its venues from private contractor AEG 
Ogden (Perth) Pty Ltd.  DCA has provided support to the PTT in 
transitioning to in-house management.  DCA has also supported the 
PTT and the West Australian Symphony Orchestra (WASO) in 
establishing a new management arrangement for the Perth Concert 
Hall with WA Venue and Events Management Pty Ltd (WAVE), a 
wholly owned subsidiary of WASO. 

Resolve issue of ownership 
and management of the 
Albany Entertainment Centre  

PTT assumed direct management of the Albany Entertainment Centre 
(AEC) from 1 January 2015.  In May 2015, following confirmation that 
funding for the AEC would be shared by the City of Albany and PTT, 
the State Government confirmed the State (through PTT) will continue 
to retain ownership of the AEC until June 2019.  

Effective implementation of 
the new management 
arrangements for the Perth 
Concert Hall  

In July 2014, the City of Perth (CoP) undertook a competitive tender 
process to find new leaseholders and venue managers for the Perth 
Concert Hall (PCH). DCA, PTT and WASO submitted a successful joint 
Expression of Interest (EOI) to lease and manage the PCH.  The PCH is 
now leased to the PTT under a one year lease to 31 December 2015.  
The PCH is being managed for this period by WA Venue and Events 
Management Pty Ltd (WAVE), a not for profit entity established by the 
West Australian Symphony Orchestra (WASO).  If a long term lease 
agreement is negotiated, the WASO will relocate its operations to the 
PCH and establish it as its new home to meet a Government election 
commitment.  
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OBJECTIVE 2: PROVIDE LEADERSHIP THROUGH STRONG EVIDENCE-BASED POLICY, 
PLANNING AND LEGISLATIVE REFORM 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Review and revise the 
Creating Value policy 
framework to address 
emerging issues and 
opportunities. 

In 2014, DCA reviewed and updated its Creating Value policy. A final 
version incorporating priorities and themes identified in the Strategic 
Directions Framework 2015-2030 will be released following finalisation 
of the Framework. 

Finalise the Culture and Arts 
legislative reform agenda. 

The Culture and Arts legislative reform aims to modernise the Culture 
and Arts portfolio legislation, including reform of board structures, 
inclusion of ministerial power to direct and providing flexibility to 
engage in greater commercial activity. Approval to commence 
drafting of legislation was received in November 2014. 

Promote the State Records 
Office as a leader in records 
and document 
management, collections 
and digitisation across the 
public service. 

In 2014-15, the State Records Office (SRO) carried out its legislative 
functions as required under the State Records Act 2000 in regulating 
information management across State and Local government, and 
preserving and providing government and community access to the 
State Archives Collection. Substantial assistance was provided to 
government agencies in the review of agency Record Keeping Plans, 
information management training and an advisory/consultancy 
service. Significant progress was achieved in improving access to the 
State Archives Collection with system development, digitisation 
activities and new partnerships to broaden access to historical 
information. For further information on SRO activities and outcomes 
for the 2014-15 year, please refer to State Information Management 
and Archive Services in this document. 

Roll-out of the Public Value 
Measurement Framework 
including benchmarking with 
arts organisations in Australia 
and internationally 

Culture Counts, one of the key components of the Public Value 
Measurement Framework, was launched by the Minister in 2014. 
Culture Counts is a metric framework, digital application and web 
portal system established to capture, analyse and report public, peer 
and artist feedback on standardised metrics of quality in real time to 
enable global benchmarking, performance tracking and evidence-
based decision-making.  The DCA-developed system is being 
successfully used in Australia, England, Scotland and North America.  
It has been made available for use at no cost to all DCA funded 
organisations. The principles of the Public Value Measurement 
Framework are being incorporated into the new Organisations 
Investment Program, which will replace DCA’s annual, triennial and 
multi-year funding programs from 2016. 
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Prepare an economic 
assessment of the 
sustainability of the funded 
arts sector in WA for 2015-
2030 

DCA is drafting a discussion paper on the sustainability of funding for 
arts organisations.  Based on a desktop review and analysis of 
published research, data and case studies, the paper considers 
possible strategies and investment approaches that may help to build 
greater sustainability in the WA sector.   

OBJECTIVE 3: PROMOTE A DIVERSE, VIBRANT AND SUSTAINABLE CULTURAL SECTOR 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Implement the Regional Arts 
and Cultural Action Plan 

The Regional Arts and Cultural Action Plan (RACAP) was developed 
as a framework to guide government and community investment in 
regional arts and culture over the next five years. The RACAP was 
launched at the Regional Arts Australia Summit in Kalgoorlie Boulder in 
October 2014. Actions implemented in 2014-15 include support for 
Creative Albany Inc. to develop an audit of the creative industries in 
the Great Southern: participation in the development of the Peel 
Regional Arts and Culture Strategy led by Regional Development 
Australia Peel; support for the CircuitWest Playing the State Showcase; 
and for the annual West Australian Music’s (WAM) Regional Round 
Table as part of the WAM Festival.   

Administer the regional 
touring program to increase 
access to the arts and 
support the development of 
arts and cultural 
organisations in regional WA 

The results of the inaugural round of the Royalties for Regions-funded 
Regional Touring Boost grants program was announced at the 
Regional Arts Australia Summit in October 2014. Grants were awarded 
to support a tour of Noongar country by contemporary musicians 
Gina Williams and Guy Ghouse; a tour of the Kimberley region and 
Mandurah by Broome- based Marrugeku Theatre’s ‘Cut the Sky’; and 
a South West and Great Southern regional tour of the production 
‘Great White’ by theatre company Skeletal System. 

Develop policy to increase 
philanthropic and private 
sector support of the arts in 
WA 

In preparation of its economic assessment of the sustainability of the 
funded arts sector in WA for 2015-2030, DCA analysed philanthropic 
and private sector support policies and provided recommendations 
that will inform future policy making.  

Implement the Royalties for 
Regions regional arts funding 
initiative 

The Royalties for Regions investment of $24 million in the Creative 
Regions program was announced in June 2015. Funding will support 
five schemes to be delivered through a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between DCA and the Department of 
Regional Development. The program aligns with the Government’s 
State Planning Strategy, the Department of Regional Development’s 
policy objectives and DCA’s Regional Arts and Cultural Action Plan 
2014-2018.  

   DCA Annual Report 2014-15  |  18 



Review and develop 
international policy and 
strategies to provide a strong 
base for cultural exchange 
and expansion of Western 
Australian arts and culture 

Development of a portfolio-wide International Policy and Strategy is 
underway with the recent formation of an International Reference 
Group. This group will develop the cultural policy objectives as well as 
encourage innovative cultural engagement initiatives and priorities.   

Review and develop cross-
government and inter-
agency partnerships and 
initiatives 

DCA develops and maintains a range of partnerships across the State 
and the Australian Government to deliver services, leverage income 
and distribute funding that effectively and efficiently coordinates 
government resources. DCA provides commentary on the policy and 
strategy initiatives of other Government departments that impact the 
culture and arts sector. 

 Memoranda of 
Understanding with 
State and 
Commonwealth 
Government authorities 

DCA currently has 12 formal MOUs with WA and Australian 
Government agencies and a further 11 partnerships with other State 
and Australian Government Departments. Partnerships include the 
$24 million Creative Regions program with the Department of 
Regional Development; a four-year joint policy and funding program 
with the Department of Education and the Australia Council for the 
Arts; and the Percent for Art Scheme with the Department of 
Finance’s Building Management and Works. 

 Anzac Centenary 
program with 
Department of Premier 
and Cabinet 

The Culture and Arts Portfolio partnered with the Department of 
Premier and Cabinet, Lotterywest, the City of Perth, The Returned & 
Services League (WA) and the Metropolitan Redevelopment 
Authority to deliver a commemorative Anzac Centenary program in 
April 2015.  

 100 Years of Anzac was a three day, day-time event that 
brought approximately 18,000 people to the Perth Cultural 
Centre. The event focused on family friendly, free activities and 
entertainment including a range of live music, interactive 
children’s activities, exhibitions, vehicle displays, poetry, 
installations, stalls, screen activation and food that focussed on 
the overarching WW1 theme reflection, gratitude and 
education.   

 The State Government contributed $50,000 through Royalties for 
Regions to record a performance of the critically acclaimed 
theatre production, Black Diggers for a later regional telecast 
via Westlink at 7.30pm on Friday, April 24. Lotterywest funding 
also enabled the telecast to be shown at some regional arts 
centres, including the Albany Entertainment Centre and 
Mandurah Performing Arts Centre.  An all-male cast tells the 
story - through a series of vignettes - of the hundreds of 
Aboriginal soldiers who signed up to fight for Australia on the 
battlefields of Europe. The show was presented at the State 
Theatre Centre of WA during the Perth International Arts Festival. 
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 Creative Connections 
and ArtsEdge arts in 
education partnership 
with Department of 
Education 

DCA has partnered with the Department of Education (DoE) for many 
years to deliver Creative Connections: An Arts in Education 
Partnership Framework 2010-2014 which includes the ArtsEdge 
program. Delivery of the program has been extended to coincide 
with the conclusion of the current Memorandum of Understanding at 
the end of 2016.  DCA and the DoE contracted Mathilda Joubert in 
June 2015 to undertake an independent consultancy that will guide 
future directions for the Department’s long-standing partnership 
delivering support for arts in education across Western Australia.  

 Artist-in-Residence (AiR) 
Grants Program  

Delivered through ArtsEdge, the AiR Grants Program supported five 
Western Australian public schools in the 2014-15 STREAM 1 grant round 
– Bayulu Remote Community School, Beverley District High School, 
Darlington Primary School, Geographe Primary School and Hammond 
Park Primary School. The two-year AiR Commission at Murdoch 
University commenced in April 2014. Six artists worked with 333 
Graduate Diploma of Education Primary and Bachelor of Education 
Primary/Early Childhood pre-service teachers in 2014. The AiR Grants 
Program pilot evaluation report 2010-2013 by Curtin University was 
released online via the DCA and ArtsEdge websites in April 2015. 

 Aboriginal art centres 
professional 
development program 
with Commonwealth 
Government Ministry for 
the Arts 

DCA delivered a professional development program for Aboriginal art 
centre managers, boards and artists as a part of Revealed 2015.  The 
Artistic Program provided participants with the opportunity to learn 
new skills in fibre, painting, printmaking and digital media, while the 
Operational Program, delivered by a range of experienced 
facilitators examined key issues in the sector, including pricing, 
curatorial practice, product diversification and industry development. 
Revealed also delivered an exhibition, public symposium and 
marketplace event in the Perth Cultural Centre that attracted an 
audience of almost 7000 people.  Exhibition and marketplace sales 
totalled $170,000.  

 Percent for Art scheme 
with Dept of Finance 

The Western Australian Percent for Art Scheme saw 34 new artwork 
commissions being completed under the Scheme partnership 
between DCA and The Department of Finance’s Building 
Management and Works (BMW).  Several new major infrastructure 
projects currently progressing feature commissions with art budgets in 
excess of $1m, including: the new Midland Hospital; the Gateway WA 
project; the new Perth Stadium; and the New Museum Project.  
Regional areas  benefitted from 9 new public art commissions, 
highlights include the opening of the National ANZAC Centre in 
Albany (featuring artwork by Audrey Fernandez-Satar and Arif Satar) 
and the Northam Senior High School Arts Centre (with artwork by Nic 
Compton and Pierre Capponi). 

The acknowledgement and promotion of Aboriginal culture through 
Aboriginal artists’ involvement in public art has continued across 
several BMW projects and other State Government agencies. These 
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include: Kimberley Training Institute Broome Campus with Yawuru 
artist Martha Lee in liaison with Yawuru Elders and mentored by Steve 
Tepper, and the Kununurra Courthouse project. The project which 
was also featured in AA (May-June 2015), involved a large number of 
Aboriginal artists from Warmun, Kalumburu and Waringarri Arts.  

As part of the Revealed 2015 professional development program, 
DCA presented a half-day workshop targeted at Aboriginal artists 
and art centre managers wishing to access public art opportunities. 
Three speakers presented case studies representing different 
commissioning approaches to public art. An information sheet on the 
three case studies was also developed for participants. 

DCA commissioned a documentary of Percent for Art projects at the 
Fiona Stanley Hospital. The video documents the diverse range of 
artworks with background information on the development of ideas 
for each artwork relayed through artist’s interviews. The documentary 
is available on the DCA website.  

 Partnership with 
Department of 
Regional Development 
to deliver 
performances by 
MPACs  

DCA’s partnership with the Department of Regional Development 
aims to increase access by regional communities to the 
performances of the Major Performing Arts Companies (MPACs). 
Highlights of the joint funding program in 2014-15 included: 

 a tour by the WA Symphony Orchestra to perform three 
Beethoven symphonies. It was the first time the full orchestra has 
performed in Albany in 20 years,  

 an extensive eight-region tour by Black Swan State Theatre 
Company of Midsummer – A Play with Music; and  

 touring of the WA Ballet production Zip Zap Zoom to regional 
areas immediately following the season at the Quarry 
Amphitheatre in Perth in 2015.  

 Partnership with 
Disability Services 
Commission to deliver 
arts and disability 
initiatives 

DCA has had a formal MOU with the Disability Services Commission 
since June 2006.  The MOU supports increased opportunities for 
people with disability to engage in a broad range of inclusive arts 
activities across WA, greater understanding and appreciation of the 
genre of art made by people with disability and the work of 
established artists; and greater opportunities for Western Australians 
with a disability to contribute to arts and culture in WA.  The MOU 
delivered several strategic initiatives in 2014-15: 

 The re-presentation of high profile curated exhibition 
HERE&NOW13 at the Regional Arts Australia Summit in 
Kalgoorlie-Boulder from 16–19 October 2014.  The exhibition was 
titled ‘Beyond the Western Edge’, and showcased works by 
eleven West Australian artists with disability. 

 Support for the 2015 Program of Art Partners, a mentorship 
program that matches people with disability with mentors, and 
provides opportunity to participate in mainstream art classes 
and activities in the Bunbury Regional Art Galleries, Stirling Street 
Arts Centre and The Red Mill Studio Gallery in Bunbury. 
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Develop strategies for 
increased participation in the 
arts by children and young 
people 

DCA delivered a pilot of KidsCulture in the Cities of Albany and Stirling 
throughout 2014. An independent evaluation completed in October 
2014 demonstrated that the pilot achieved its aim of engaging 
children from low socioeconomic status families in arts activities; 
however, the administrative cost of the program was not deemed 
cost effective.  The DCA will now aim to deliver the objectives of 
KidsCulture using existing funds through its funding to key arts 
organisations across the State.  

DCA delivered a Young People and the Arts Roundtable featuring 
presentations by Professor Kent Anderson, UWA Deputy Vice-
Chancellor (Community & Engagement); and Joel Tan, Yerba Buena 
Centre for the Arts in the US.   

Support was provided for evaluation of Propel Youth Arts WA’s Youth 
Arts Hub - The Hive - at the State Theatre Centre of WA from March to 
December 2014 and to Awesome Festival to present a seminar at 
State Library during October 2014 on how to measure young 
audience member responses.   

OBJECTIVE 4: ENSURE EFFECTIVE MANAGEMENT OF THE STATE GOVERNMENT’S 
INVESTMENT IN CULTURE AND THE ARTS 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Work with the Portfolio 
agencies and the 
Department of Treasury to 
identify how structural 
operating deficits can be 
resolved 

The Culture and the Arts Portfolio has commenced review of its 
operations as part of an Agency Expenditure Review (AER). 
Outcomes of the AER will assist in identifying areas of efficiency to 
offset structural deficits.  The DCA is currently working with Portfolio 
Agencies to collate information requested for the review. 

Reform arts funding policies 
and processes to improve 
outcomes and reduce the 
administrative burden on the 
sector 

DCA has developed a new model of funding for organisations 
commencing in 2016. The Organisation Investment Program provides 
recurrent funding within a transparent framework that requires funded 
arts organisations to achieve public benefits across three areas: the 
artistic and arts/cultural sector; the community; and the economy. It 
will replace DCA’s current organisational funding and establishes 
explicit, measurable criteria to assess and inform funding decisions. 

   DCA Annual Report 2014-15  |  22 



Establish outcomes based 
performance measures for 
the Portfolio which are 
approved by the 
Department of Treasury. 

As part of the development of the 2015-16 State Budget, DCA worked 
with Portfolio agencies to review the Outcome Based Management 
(OBM) reporting structure for the portfolio resulting in an expansion to 
twelve Desired Outcomes and sixteen Services.  New Key 
Effectiveness Indicator and Efficiency Indicator measures were 
developed to improve the relevance of performance reporting for 
each Outcome and Service. The final structure was approved by the 
Economic and Expenditure Reform Committee and adopted into the 
2015-16 State Budget Papers. 

Develop a cultural 
infrastructure management 
policy for metropolitan and 
regional areas that addresses 
the maintenance, 
optimisation and utilisation of 
current infrastructure 

DCA is working with the Culture and the Arts Portfolio agencies to 
optimise use of cultural infrastructure.  A plan to implement asset 
optimisation measures will be developed in the 2015-16 year. 

Review the storage 
requirements of the State’s 
Archives and visual art 
collections 

A working group has been established to assess the storage 
requirements of the Portfolio, and to determine the most cost 
effective solution.   Storage of the State’s cultural material is a critical 
issue; there is a need to secure the collections for the future and to 
make them more accessible to the community. 

OBJECTIVE 5: ESTABLISH EFFICIENT AND EFFECTIVE BUSINESS SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Successfully implement the 
Online Grants Management 
System 

In January 2015, DCA launched the Online Grants management 
system to address recommendations from a funding process review. It 
provides a contemporary solution for grant applications and 
management. The system includes a web portal that allows grant 
applicants to draft and submit applications and reports online and an 
integrated Customer Relationship Management (CRM) database to 
enable DCA to process funding submissions, assessments, payments, 
acquittals and reporting for all DCA funding. The system has been 
integrated with the DCA records management systems. Work to 
integrate Online Grants with the corporate finance system is 
underway and will be delivered as part of the next phase of 
improvements.   

Develop and deliver on 
service level agreements with 
the Portfolio agencies 

Service level agreements incorporating agreed services standards for 
delivery of core business activities and key tasks undertaken by 
Human Resources, Finance and Information Services are being 
finalised. 
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Review agreements on 
infrastructure-related services 
provided to the Portfolio 
agencies to ensure optimum 
cost/benefit. 

Infrastructure Improvement Program 

In May 2014, the State Government approved an allocation of $7.8 
million over four years (commencing in 2014-15) to the Culture and 
Arts Portfolio to implement the Infrastructure Improvement Program 
(IIP).  The major objective of the IIP is to improve culture and the arts 
service delivery within portfolio facilities.  

Through a process of risk assessment the Portfolio identified 26 
infrastructure projects required to address risk of failure.  Six projects 
were approved for funding in 2014-15 including upgrade of wireless 
communications hardware at His Majesty’s Theatre; upgrade of 
multimedia equipment at the Geraldton Museum and upgrade of 
public microfilm equipment at the State Records Office.  

Asset Maintenance Program 

The 2012 State Budget increased the allocation of funding to the 
Asset Maintenance Program (AMP) from $3 million p.a. to $5 million 
p.a. for four financial years commencing 2012-13. This increase in 
funding was based on a business case submission to the Department 
of Treasury by DCA that included a prioritised list of maintenance 
works as identified by Culture and the Arts Portfolio organisations. 

Support the implementation 
and use of technology for 
business improvement across 
the Portfolio 

DCA implemented a number of business improvement initiatives 
supported by information technology infrastructure and services 
during the 2014-15 year. These include: 

 Redevelopment and migration of the DCA intranet to a 
Microsoft SharePoint platform, which enables ease of access to 
all corporate information, improved search functionality and 
increased useability for all staff.  

 Migration of the Portfolio agencies from legacy analogue PABX 
telephony solutions to a new digital Voice over IP (VoIP) 
solution, which will provide cost savings across the Portfolio. 
Benefits include free calls between agencies within the 
metropolitan area and some regional sites such as WA Museum 
- Geraldton; access to voicemail functionality by all staff and 
portability of phone numbers to any location. The new system 
allows users to access an email and intranet-linked global 
contact list from their phone handsets. 

 Implementation of electronic workflows using Microsoft 
SharePoint and Nintex technology for approvals of staff travel 
and acceptance of gifts and hospitality.   

 Development of an Online Dashboard to enable management 
of Human Resources information, including workforce diversity, 
workforce movement and leave management reports. 

 Implementation of a state of the art Disaster Recovery (DR) 
system that provides all Portfolio agencies with full backup and 
data replication in the event of a major disaster at the primary 
data centre site.  
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 Movement of the Primary data centre site to a commercial 
facility as part of the DR project. New disk storage procured 
provides Portfolio agencies with the ability to leverage shared 
storage for new digitised collection, preservation and archiving 
systems.   

 Implementation of a web-based extranet facility to enable 
secure document sharing with external stakeholders via the 
internet. This facility is now being used by ScreenWest WA for its 
grants panels.  

Revise the communications 
strategy to promote active 
engagement with Portfolio 
boards, the broader cultural 
sector, arts organisations and 
the community 

In 2014-15, DCA developed targeted communications strategies to 
support key projects and initiatives, including the Public Value 
Management Framework, the Regional Arts and Cultural Action Plan, 
the Organisations Investment Program, Online Grants, and the $24 
million Creative Regions program.  Each strategy is tailored to engage 
one or more of DCA’s target stakeholder groups in the arts and 
cultural sector, state and local government, and wider community. 
Key themes, objectives and messages from strategies implemented in 
the past year are being considered in the development of an 
overarching communications strategy for DCA pending outcomes of 
the Agency Expenditure Review and the Strategic Directions 
Framework 2015-2030. 

OBJECTIVE 6: DEVELOP A WORKFORCE THAT IS ENGAGED, CAPABLE, ADAPTABLE AND 
AGILE 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Review the existing DCA 
structure and budget to 
ensure better alignment of 
DCA resources to deliver on 
strategic and operational 
outcomes  

DCA applied a zero-based budgeting approach to the development 
of the 2015-16 budget to enable a critical review of each salary 
position and expenditure item.  A review of the annual budget will be 
undertaken following completion of the Agency Expenditure Review. 

Establish guidelines for 
flexibility in recruitment and 
retention to further develop 
an adaptable workforce 

DCA updated its Recruitment, Selection and Appointment manual, 
which establishes guidelines for flexibility in recruitment practices and 
includes all diversity groups recognised under the Equal Opportunity 
Act (WA) 1984. Related actions undertaken in the 2014-15 year include: 

 Engagement of school-based trainees, Aboriginal trainees and 
interns to encourage young people to be part of the agency’s 
future workforce.  

 Provision of training in the use of the newly implemented 
Candidate Management System, which provides better return on 
investment and enables managers to concentrate on attracting 
and selecting the right person for roles within the Portfolio.  
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 Provision of training to management in creating awareness of the 
benefits of a diverse workforce, including Aboriginal people and 
those from culturally diverse background.  

 Provision of regular reports on the participation rates of all 
diversity groups to assist line managers within the Portfolio to 
determine the best mix of staff within their teams. 

 Adaptation of DCA Performance Development System and JDFs 
around the Public Sector Capability Framework. 

Develop and implement a 
learning and development 
strategy that builds business 
capability to meet strategic 
objectives 

A review of DCA’s current learning and development strategy and 
performance development system is currently underway. Related 
initiatives undertaken in the reporting year include: 

 A revised system of performance development piloted in 2014-
15. 

 An Employee Perception Survey based on a job satisfaction 
model conducted across the Culture and Arts Portfolio. With job 
satisfaction linked to productivity and high performance, results 
are used by directors and managers to optimise the function of 
the DCA workforce. 

Assess opportunities for 
whole of Portfolio flexible 
staffing initiatives 

DCA continues to advertise higher duties and vacant positions across 
the Culture and Arts Portfolio. Human Resources collects data on 
separations and fixed term contract employees to enable Portfolio 
CEOs and directors to plan strategies/interventions around future 
recruitment.  

In 2014-15, DCA HR provided workforce analysis for the Culture and Arts 
Portfolio highlighting participation rates in the area of women in 
management, Aboriginal people, youth, people from culturally diverse 
backgrounds and people with disabilities. This data is used to create 
more flexible staffing initiatives across the Portfolio.  
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Priority projects  
 Implementation of actions from the Structural Examination  

DCA continued to implement actions to address recommendations of a Structural Examination 
undertaken in 2013.  During the 2014-15 year, work was undertaken on a sector-wide arts policy, 
the development of a new strategic plan, the completion of a study on the economic impact 
of the Arts and Culture sector in Western Australia and the completion of drafting instructions to 
amend legislation.  The implementation of other recommendations is ongoing.   

 Development of a new DCA strategic plan  

The DCA Strategic Plan 2015-2017 was released in January 2015. The plan identifies how the 
Department will deliver the Government’s and DCA’s own key priorities over the period of the 
plan, and will steer the Department to achieve the vision through the realisation of the 
corporate objectives and strategies identified in the plan.   

 Research and compilation of statistical data for business and advocacy purposes  

DCA undertook a number of research consultancies in partnership with other agencies, sector 
organisations or research institutions in 2014-15 to address key strategic policy and research 
priorities for arts and culture in the state. Publications delivered during the year include the Arts 
in Daily Life: Western Australian Participation in the Arts report and fact sheet, developed in 
partnership with the Australia Council for the Arts, the Cultural Attendance and Participation in 
Western Australia 2013-14 fact sheet and the Cultural Funding by Government fact sheet, both 
based on Australian Bureau of Statistics cultural funding data. DCA, representing the Statistics 
Working Group (SWG) for the Meeting of Cultural Ministers, participated in Australia Council's 
Research Strategy Panel. DCA  also sat on the Statistics Policy Committee for the ABS and the 
Western Australian Government to provide input into statistical needs and priorities for the State. 

 Stakeholder consultation to plan for the small to medium theatre sector 2014-2018 

WA’s small-to-medium theatre sector plays an invaluable role in developing and nurturing 
emerging theatre practitioners and providing access to affordable, cutting edge 
performances. DCA contracted an independent theatre consultant to consult with WA’s sector, 
national arts agencies and theatre companies, as to the best use of funding previously 
allocated to Deckchair and Thin Ice theatre companies. Following conclusion of the 
consultancy, a determination was made to allocate this and additional funding to The Blue 
Room, PICA and Performing Lines to support their programs of work.  The Department will 
undertake a full review of the WA theatre sector across all genres to maximise the diversity of 
work, the use of State owned and managed venues and improve the quality and quantity of 
work delivered by the theatre sector.  

 Review DCA’s approach to supporting creative industries 

In 2014, DCA merged two previously separate programs, Designer Fashion and Contemporary 
Music, into a single Creative Industries grants program. The new program supports projects that 
strategically develop the creative and commercial capacity of the Western Australian music 
and fashion sectors and is designed to assist applicants to access commercial markets, develop 
skills and infrastructure, and build new audiences and markets.  A review of the Creative 
Industries grants program is currently being undertaken to evaluate the benefits of the program 
to the music and designer fashion sectors, the outcomes of the merge and the fit of the 
program with sector needs.   
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 Implement the Strategic Asset Planning and Management Framework 

DCA has worked with the Portfolio to implement the Strategic Asset Management Framework 
and will provide a comprehensive Strategic Asset Plan to Government in 2016.  The work to 
date has included preparation of Investment Purpose Statements and assessment of service 
delivery.  In 2014-15 the Portfolio endorsed the Services and Resourcing planning model that 
enables the Portfolio to align allocation of resources to service delivery priorities.  This includes 
buildings, information and communication technology and human resources.  

 Goldfields Art Centre upgrade  

In May 2014, the Government approved an allocation of $6.2 million for the first phase of the re-
development of the Goldfields Arts Centre. The funding included $5 million to refurbish the 
facility and $1.2 million over four years to assist with administration. The funding was provided to 
the Department of Training and Workforce Development (DTWD) from the Royalties for Regions 
Regional Infrastructure and Headworks Fund. DCA has provided advice and support to the 
DTWD and the City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder in completing the refurbishment and management of 
the Centre.  

 Complete building condition and technical equipment assessments for DCA and culture and 
arts portfolio buildings to support a business case for fitness for purpose upgrades 

Building Condition Assessment (BCA) of the Art Gallery of Western Australia (AGWA) was 
completed in April 2015. Major report findings are mechanical services in the Main Gallery and 
Administration Building are at risk of failing. AGWA are to submit a project proposal to the Asset 
Maintenance Program to address identified issues. Scoping of the Shipwreck Galleries and 
Maritime Museum is progressing aiming for project completion in December 2015. 

 Development of an Energy Thermal Solution to supply the Perth Cultural Centre institutions   

The development and implementation of a centralised energy solution for the Perth Cultural 
Centre (PCC) will significantly reduce energy consumption for all organisations in the PCC, 
including the New Museum.  This project has been endorsed by the State Government for 
inclusion in the scope of the New Museum Project.  

 Partner with the Portfolio organisations to develop a shared service delivery model 

A review of the delivery of human resources, finance and information services was undertaken 
in consultation with the Portfolio agencies in 2015. The review findings will be considered as part 
of the Agency Expenditure Review.    

 Live music venues review  

Several established Perth live music venues, including The Bakery and Deville’s Pad, announced 
in early 2015 they would cease operations. The closures led to several actions including 
organisation of a ‘Perth Venue Action meet’ by representatives of the live music industry in 
February 2015; the establishment of an action group ‘More Music Arts Venues Perth’; and 
launch of a related website and Facebook page with more than 3,000 followers. The DCA 
undertook a review of the live music industry to examine some of the reasons behind the 
closures and what policy or other considerations may be taken into account. A set of 
recommendations on how to provide future support to live music venues has been included in 
the report, which will be available on the DCA website from July 2015.  
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Core Services 
GRANTS AND FUNDING 

DCA distributed more than $27 million in funding in 2014-15 to bring a vibrant mix of arts and culture to 
Western Australian audiences. This included over $19.5 million in funding to non-government 
organisations and more than $ 7.5  million in grants awarded to individuals, groups and organisations. 
Over 600 applications for funding were received during the 2014-15 year. 

Through its funding avenues, DCA provides assistance to the State’s major festivals, including the 
annual Perth International Arts Festival, the Fringe World Festival, and the Telstra Perth Fashion Festival, 
dozens of non-government arts organisations, and individual practitioners across a broad range of art 
forms and disciplines. 

Organisations funding 

DCA provides funding to non-government arts organisations as a base from which they can then 
generate additional income through sponsorship, box office earnings and funding from other bodies 
to support their annual program of activities. This funding enables organisations to deliver significant 
social and economic benefits to the wider Western Australian community by developing, delivering 
and promoting innovative artistic and cultural programs of excellence. 

The Lotteries Commission Act requires that five per cent of net subscriptions each year are paid to the 
Arts Lotteries Account, which is then distributed by DCA through recurrent funding agreements as a 
contribution towards the delivery of annual programs of activity. In 2014-2015, $19 million in recurrent 
funding was provided to 42 organisations for the operational and artistic costs of delivering an agreed 
level of service.  

An additional $290,000 was provided to seven annually funded organisations and $541,000 to six 
strategically funded organisations to support key initiatives.   

 Major Performing Arts organisations 

DCA funds Major Performing Arts (MPA) companies in partnership with the Australian Government 
through the Australia Council as part of a national approach to secure high level outcomes from the 
MPA sector.  The MPA companies are funded through the National Framework for Government's 
Support of the Major Performing Arts Sector which was agreed by Cultural Ministers in August 2011. 
The Framework continues the partnership between Australian, State and Territory Governments to 
support artistic excellence and best practice governance and management in 28 designated MPA 
companies across Australia.  

The four MPA companies in Western Australia are the West Australian Symphony Orchestra, the West 
Australian Ballet, the Black Swan State Theatre Company and the West Australian Opera. These 
companies play a vital role in the development of artists and audiences, as well as being a large 
employer of artists and arts professionals in Western Australia.  
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The total value of funding to MPA companies in 2014-15 was $9,111,927, which includes core funding, 
strategic funding, and allocations for regional touring funded by the State Government’s Royalties for 
Regions.  

Organisation name Core funding Royalties for Regions 
regional touring  

Strategic 
funding 

Black Swan Theatre Company $1,406,010 $55,000 $50,000 

West Australian Ballet Company $2,952,967 $50,000 $300,000 

West Australian Opera Company $1,882,201 $52,000 $100,000 

West Australian Symphony Orchestra (WASO) $2,213,749 N/A $50,000 

 Annual, Triennial and Multi-year  

DCA supported a number of arts organisations on an annual, multi-year or triennial year basis in 2014-
15. The total value of core funding to these organisations is listed below.  An additional $211,000 was 
provided to assist organisations with identified special initiatives over the 2014-15 year. The 
Organisations Investment Program will supersede the annual, triennial and multi-year funding 
programs from 2016. 

Annually-funded organisations Funding for 2014-15 ($) 

Fellowship of Australian Writers WA 17,370 

Katherine Susannah Prichard Foundation 30,250 

Mundaring Arts Centre 80,800 

Perth Centre of Photography 62,047 

Playwriting Australia 50,000 

The Australian Script Centre 10,000 

Perth Jazz Society 39,113 

 

Triennially-funded organisations Funding for 2014-15 ($) 

Art On The Move 462,167  

Artrage  342,521  

Artsource 427,583 

Australian Dance Council 182,904  

Barking Gecko Theatre Company 449,016  

Buzz Dance Theatre 154,978 

Community Arts Network WA  178,718  
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Country Arts WA 491,126  

Form  291,733  

Fremantle Arts Centre  703,330  

Fremantle Press 309,175  

Magabala Books Aboriginal Corporation 249,270  

The Blue Room 247,809  

Perth Theatre Company 494,677  

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts (PICA) 703,711  

Spare Parts Puppet Theatre  424,157  

STRUT dance 261,950  

WA Music Industry Association (WAM) 345,878  

Western Australian Youth Orchestras 190,260  

Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre 323,125  

Co3 250,000  

 

Multi-year funded organisations Funding for 2014-15 ($) 

Australian Writers Guild (WA) 15,981  

Awesome Arts Australia  208,924  

Children's Book Council Of Australia (WA) 52,932  

DADAA  140,149  

The Literature Centre  65,350  

Goolarri Media Enterprises  81,887  

Spaced 208,013  

Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (KALACC) 81,760  

Museums Australia WA 85,668  

Musica Viva Australia 31,946  

Propel Youth Arts 132,911  

Royal WA Historical Society 46,263  

Southern Edge Arts  83,523  

Stages WA 81,178  
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STEPS Youth Dance Company 57,450  

Tura Events  255,057  

Writing WA 192,929  

WA Youth Jazz Orchestra 56,087  

WA Youth Theatre Company 84,384  

 

Strategically Funded Organisations Funding for 2014-15 ($) 

Perth Fashion Festival 250,000  

Arts Law   50,000  

Asialink 60,000  

CIA Studios 65,000 

Royal Historical Journal 16,000 

Pvi collective 100,000 

 Organisations Investment Program 

In early 2015, DCA launched the Organisations Investment Program (the Program), an open and 
competitive funding program that will replace DCA’s multi-year, triennial and annual funding 
programs from 2016 onwards. The program establishes explicit, measurable criteria to assess and 
inform funding decisions, with the objective of delivering public benefits across three areas: 

 The artistic and arts/cultural sector – supporting excellence, innovation and diversity in artistic 
and cultural practice. 

 The community – growing, diversifying and deepening Western Australian audiences and their 
engagement with arts and cultural experiences. 

 The economy – increasing the contribution that the arts and cultural sector makes to the 
Western Australian economy. 

The Program supports professional arts and cultural organisations that are not-for-profit, legally 
constituted and non-government; have presented professional arts and cultural programs for two 
years or more; and are based in Western Australia. Applications are also accepted from national arts 
and cultural organisations offering significant benefits to Western Australians. Organisations will be 
funded under one of four categories: Established Organisations, Developing Organisations, 
Consolidating Organisations and Lead Organisations.  

In January 2015, DCA sought expressions of interest (EOI) to the Program from arts and cultural 
organisations throughout the State. The EOI stage was intended to establish initial eligibility for the 
Program and match organisations to the most appropriate application category. Following 
conclusion of the EOI stage on 27 March 2015, 77 eligible organisations were invited to submit 
applications as part of stage 2 of the Program. The DCA has convened a panel of expert peers to 
assess applications and make recommendations on funding allocations. Upon Ministerial approval 
the DCA will enter into new recurrent contracts commencing in January 2016. 
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Devolved funding 

DCA contracts non-government organisations to manage some regional and community arts 
programs on its behalf.  In 2014-15 $1,143,702 was distributed to arts and cultural organisations and 
community projects via devolved funding managed by Country Arts WA and the Community Arts 
Network WA.  

 Country Arts WA 

Country Arts WA manages two programs: the Core Arts Fund (previously known as Annual Funding), 
which provides financial support to regional arts organisations to coordinate a broad range of arts 
and cultural activities that engage their community; and the Regional Performing Arts Touring 
Program, which provides access to professional touring performing arts across regional Western 
Australia. 

Total funding distributed via Core Arts Fund: $ 320,919 

Total funding distributed via Regional Performing Arts Touring Program: $465,00 

Total devolved funding to Country Arts WA: $ 785,919 

 Community Arts Network Western Australia 

Community Arts Network Western Australia (CAN WA) manages two programs: the Catalyst 
Community Arts Fund, which supports community-determined arts, cultural and skills development 
projects across Western Australia, and the Creative Networks Regional Local Government Fund, 
which supports local regional government authorities to develop their capacity to use art and culture 
to improve the lives of people living in regional WA. 

Total funding distributed via Catalyst Community Arts Fund: $ 266,821 

Total funding distributed via Creative Networks Regional Local Government Fund: $ 90,962 

Total devolved funding to CAN WA: $ 357,783 

Grants Programs 

DCA grants programs include Arts Development, Young People and the Arts, Aboriginal Arts, Creative 
Industries, the Connect Community Collections program and the Regional Touring Boost program.  
These competitive funding programs are designed to provide emerging and established artists and 
arts-workers, designers and musicians with one-off funding assistance to undertake and deliver a 
broad range of projects and activities across multiple art forms and disciplines. 

Total applications received: 617 

Total grants awarded: 297 

Total value of funding distributed through grants programs: $3,258,228 
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 Arts Development 

The Arts Development program aims to build sustainable, professional creative practice in WA by 
providing support to artists and arts workers across all art forms. Grants are awarded to individuals, 
groups and organisations under six categories: Development, Distribution and Marketing, Visual Arts 
and Craft Mid-Career Fellowships, Creative Development Fellowships, Emerging Curators and 
Artflight. DCA also funded a number of special initiatives for targeted arts industry growth through the 
Arts Development Program in 2014-15. 

Total applications received: 333 

Total projects funded: 158 

Total value of funding: $1,581,053 

 Young People and the Arts 

DCA’s Young People and the Arts program supports creative, skills and market development for artists 
and arts workers aged 26 years and under, as well as individuals, groups and organisations creating 
work with and/or for young people. Funding categories include Development, Distribution and 
Marketing, Young People and the Arts Fellowships, Young People and the Arts International 
Scholarship, and Quick Response.  

Total applications received: 92 

Total projects funded: 37 

Total value of funding: $361,745 

 Regional Touring Boost 

The Regional Touring Boost Grant Program is funded by the State Government’s Royalties for Regions. 
The program aims to increase the number and diversity of professional small to medium circus, 
comedy, dance, music, theatre and multi–arts shows touring regional communities in Western 
Australia for the next three years. The objectives of the Regional Touring Boost program are to 
develop audiences, build capacity in regional communities, and extend touring circuits across the 
State. 

Total applications received: 9 

Total projects funded: 6 

Total value of funding: $323,511 

 Creative Industries 

The Creative Industries program supports projects that strategically develop the potential capacity 
both creatively and commercially for musicians, fashion designers and businesses related to these 
industries. The program aims to raise the profile and commercial potential of the WA contemporary 
music and designer fashion industry and support businesses that turn original creativity into functional 
products and services for local, national and international markets. Program categories include 
Commercial Development, Skills Development, Sector Development and Travel Assistance. 

   DCA Annual Report 2014-15  |  34 



Total applications received: 137 

Total projects funded: 79 

Total value of funding: $665,557 

 Connect Community Collections 

The Connect community collections program supports quality public programs and professional 
development for Western Australian collecting organisations and collection professionals. The 
program aims to provide opportunities for collection professionals to develop their expertise in 
collection management and interpretation, opportunities for artistic engagement with an existing 
collection, and funding to enable collecting organisations to deliver high quality public programs, 
exhibitions, events, collaborations or education programs inspired by their collection. 

Total applications received: 11 

Total projects funded: 8 

Total value of funding: $120,565 

 Aboriginal Arts  

DCA’s Aboriginal Arts program supports Aboriginal cultural maintenance, the professional 
development of WA Aboriginal artists and a wide range of other projects with arts development 
outcomes. It also acknowledges the rights of Aboriginal communities in determining cultural priorities.  
Program categories include Development, Distribution and Marketing and the Arts Forward 
Fellowship.  

Total applications received: 32 

Total projects funded: 9 

Total value of funding: $ 205,797 

Other Funding 

 Creative Regions funding 

In June 2015, DCA launched one of the largest investments in regional culture and arts made by a 
government in Australia.  An investment of $24 million by the State Government’s Royalties for Regions 
will fund five schemes to upgrade regional venues, increase the skills of local arts groups, expand 
funding to regionally-based artists and organisations, boost the number of touring shows, and assist 
Aboriginal arts centres from 2015 to 2018. In 2014-15, a total of $2,500,124 was distributed to Country 
Arts WA, CircuitWest and the Perth Theatre Trust (Albany Entertainment Centre). 
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 Kids Culture Pilot  

DCA delivered a pilot of KidsCulture in the Cities of Albany and Stirling throughout 2014 to enable 
children and young people aged 5 to 18 years from eligible low income families to participate in arts 
and cultural activities. A total of $66,273 was distributed through this program. 

 Strategic partnerships 

DCA provided funding of $1,361,245 towards 29 special initiatives in response to significant challenges 
and opportunities identified in the arts and cultural sector in 2014-15. These included events 
promoting growth and opportunities for specific art form sector development and community 
engagement. Of particular significance in its scale of community engagement was the 2015 Perth 
International Arts Festival ‘The Giants’ event by Royal de Luxe, to which DCA contributed funding of 
$500,000.  

Highlights 

 Festivals 

 DCA provided core funding of $342,521 to support Artrage in its delivery of the Fringe World 
Festival 2015. The festival is a key fixture in the WA arts and cultural calendar, generating 
significant community interest, benefits for businesses, and widespread exposure for WA artists. 
Of the 2,626 artists and festival personnel involved in the 2015 festival, over 70% were from WA.  
The 2015 festival featured 556 ticketed and free events spanning comedy, cabaret, theatre, 
music, children’s events, circus, visual arts, film and physical theatre and was attended by over 
600,000 people.   

 DCA contributed funding of $250,000 towards the 2014 Telstra Perth Fashion Festival. As Perth’s 
flagship fashion event, the festival provides an important platform for emerging and established 
WA designers and contributes to the long-term growth and sustainability of the local fashion 
industry. The 2014 festival program featured nine events showcasing the work of 26 local fashion 
designers and 47 local fashion design students, who received mentoring assistance from 
established designers to bring their creative vision to the runway.  The festival was well attended 
by fashion buyers and received international media coverage through the 13 national and 
international fashion journalists invited to cover the events. 

 Designer Fashion 

 DCA provided funding to WA Hyogo-Banshu Textile Exchange Program to support an exhibition 
of textile works at the Western Australian Museum in October 2015. The program is a 
collaboration between Japanese textile companies and the Western Australian fashion industry.  
The exhibition will feature work by three selected graduate emerging WA designers, high profile 
Australian designer Akira Isogawa, and internationally recognized Japanese textile companies 
from the Hyogo Prefecture Banshu Ori textile industry.  

 The Fremantle Fashion Collective was funded to showcase and promote the Spring/Summer 
collections of eight local fashion designers.  Established in 2008, the event provides valuable 
media exposure and sales opportunities for the participating businesses. 

 Three local designer fashion brands, Wolfgang and Sons, Salasai and Ava were funded to 
undertake international projects to break into the US and Asian markets for sales opportunities 
and develop their international profile. 
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 Contemporary Music 

 John Bennett, a Karajarri man from Bidyadanga in the far north west of Western Australia, 
received funding support to record his second full length album in Broome. The album will 
feature guest musicians Lucky Oceans, Emma Donovan, Melanie Robinson and David Hyams. 
John has enjoyed national recognition after the release of his first solo album in 2012 resulting in 
performances at the National Folk Festival, inclusion in BighART’s album Murru and involvement 
in the Yijala Yala theatre production Hipbone Sticking Out. 

 Persian vocalist, Tara Tiba, received funding assistance to perform at WOMADelaide Festival 
2015 with her four piece band. With the successful release of her debut album ‘Persian Dream’, 
including reviews in The Australian and Rhythms Magazine, the invitation to perform at the 
WOMADelaide Festival strengthened Tara’s national and international profile.   

 Garth Carwardine, label manager of Spinning Top Music, received funding to attend Indie 
Music Week 2015 in New York. Spinning Top, which manages Perth bands Tame Impala and 
Pond, was one of a handful of Australian record labels selected to attend the premier 
networking and skills development event for independent record labels. With a focus on fair 
trade, technology and distribution, media, legalities, advocacy, international business, 
purchasing, and branding, Indie week fosters connection building with labels, education and 
affiliated businesses. 

 Performing arts 

 DCA awarded a $60,000 Creative Development Fellowship to jazz saxophonist and composer 
Jamie Oehlers through the Arts Development grants program in 2014. The fellowship enabled 
Jamie to undertake an intensive period of study and development, which culminated in a 
recording in New York with Australian jazz pianist Paul Grabowsky and two American jazz 
musicians, drummer Eric Harland and bassist Reuben Roger.  

 DCA awarded a $22,867 Arts Development grant to Performing Lines Limited WA for Sensorium 
Theatre to tour Oddysea to the Sydney Opera House and Arts Centre Melbourne in 2015. 
Sensorium Theatre creates multi-sensory theatre for Profound Multiple Learning 
Disabilities/Autism Spectrum Disorder young audiences.   

 Visual arts 

 DCA distributed $80,000 in funding to support two individuals and two organisations as part of a 
one-off Artist Run Initiatives (ARIs) competitive round. ARIs are projects that allow visual artists to 
present their work collectively. Typically, they take the form of quite traditional exhibition spaces 
like Paper Mountain or Moana Project Space, but they may include a variety of endeavours, 
including, but not limited to: publications; video and online content; workshops and studios; or 
community engagement projects. ARIs have the capacity to be responsive and versatile; they 
increase opportunity for exhibiting artists and variety for art audiences. With the recent closure 
of numerous commercial art exhibition spaces in the Perth metro area, there has been a 
corresponding increase in the number of ARIs and their relative significance for the sector. 

 DCA provided $20,000 to the National Association for the Visual Arts for up to 10 artists to attend 
Provocations for Change, the first national visual arts summit, held in Sydney in November 2014, 
and for WA Craftspeople and Designers to attend the National Craft Initiative Conference, held 
in Melbourne in September 2015. 

 DCA awarded a $25,000 Visual Arts and Craft Mid-Career Fellowship grant to multi-media artist 
Thea Costantino. The grant will support the artist to undertake research in national and 
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international institutions, including the Australian War Museum and the Australian National 
Archives and Britain’s Imperial War Museum, Royal Geographical Society and the British Library, 
followed by development of a significant new performance work that unites the diverse genres 
and media that are the hallmarks of her practice. 

 Aboriginal arts 

 DCA provided funding to assist Desert Feet, an organisation creating educational and musical 
opportunities in remote communities, to record and launch a full length album of Olive Knight’s 
music to coincide with the release of her autobiography by University of WA Publishing. 

 DCA funded Yarliyil Art Centre in Halls Creek to deliver art development workshops with new 
techniques and media to record Halls Creek stories and histories from an Aboriginal 
perspective. 

 Through the British Council’s Accelerate program, DCA supported the participation of 
Aboriginal curators Clotilde Bullen and Carly Lane in an international Indigenous arts leadership 
development program. 

 Regional arts 

 The Regional Arts Australia Summit: Arts and Edges was presented by Country Arts WA in 
Kalgoorlie-Boulder and attracted 547 delegates from across Australia. The accompanying Arts 
and Edges Festival had 56 events (workshops, exhibitions, arts and craft fair and performances) 
open to the public. DCA was the major government partner and contributed $300,000. The 
Regional Arts and Cultural Action Plan was launched at the Summit. 

 Disability arts 

 DCA funded ‘Beyond the Western Edge’, an exhibition showcasing works by eleven West 
Australian artists with disability at the Regional Arts Australia Summit held in Kalgoorlie-Boulder in 
October 2014. 

 DCA provided funding to enable community services organisation Ruah to deliver two 
community interactive projects in Katanning: The ‘Together We Build’ – Lego project in 
November 2014, and the ‘Play me I’m Yours’ Street Piano project in February and March 2015.  

 DCA provided support for the 2015 Program of Art Partners, a mentorship program that matches 
people with disability with mentors in partnership with the Disability Services Commission.  

 Collections 

 DCA’s Connect community collections program supports innovative artist residencies with 
collections to engage new audiences.  Funded residencies in 2014-15 included musicians at the 
National Trust’s East Perth Cemetery and associated archive, and a comedian with the City of 
Armadale museum. 

 DCA continues to support the Mowanjum Aboriginal Art and Cultural Centre archive project.  
This is an intergenerational program in which young people work with senior members of the 
community to digitally document histories, mythologies and information relating to the 
Mowanjum collection. 

 Connect is funding the City of Albany to curate a retrospective exhibition of senior Noongar 
artist Bella Kelly’s work, bringing together artworks from private and public collections in the 
Great Southern region. 
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 Arts In Education 

 In 2015, DCA published the Artists-in-Residence Grants Program Pilot Evaluation Report 2010-
2013. Authored by Curtin University researchers, the report evaluates the sustained impact of 
the Artists-in-Residence (AiR) Grants Program in WA over the four-year pilot, concluding that the 
program has had significant positive outcomes for student learning, community engagement 
and professional development of artists and educators. AiR is delivered by DCA in partnership 
with the Department of Education. 

 Through the AiR Grants Program, five projects were completed in Western Australian public 
schools in 2014-15, and an additional five supported to deliver projects during 2015.  In addition, 
the AiR Commission at Murdoch University School of Education entered its second and final 
year; which involved six teaching artists working alongside educators and pre-service teachers 
to address changing curriculum requirements, build capacity, and create innovative 
pedagogy.  

 ArtsEdge added the new ‘Asia and Australia’s Engagement with Asia’ arts and culture in 
education portal via the ArtsEdge website, and developed and presented the collaborative 
learning event for artists and teachers, ‘STEAM: learning science, technology, engineering and 
mathematics in and through the arts’ in partnership with Scitech.   

 Young people 

 In January 2015, the DCA provided $21,000 funding towards the arts and cultural component of 
the Friendship Games, an international sporting and cultural exchange for students aged 12 to 
17, from across regional and metropolitan WA, as well as China, Singapore, Indonesia and 
Malaysia.  The games aim to improve understanding and foster better relations between 
nations. Arts activity included the creation of a large scale canvas with artist Deborah Bonner 
and arts workshops delivered by Propel Youth Arts. 

 DCA undertook research in the area of space activation and young people, and contributed 
to reporting and research undertaken by the Commissioner for Children and Young People, into 
the areas of wellbeing and Culturally and Linguistically Diverse young people. 

 In 2014, Chris Nixon was awarded a Young People and the Arts Fellowship which enabled him to 
develop his skills in animation production and creative direction in the USA, India, Sydney and 
Brisbane. The project led to the development of his animated short film, The Inkan Project, a 
picture book for The Inkan Project, and opportunities to pitch his collaboration with author Ken 
Spillman - The Jake Series - to several major children's entertainment networks. 
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STATE INFORMATION MANAGEMENT AND ARCHIVE SERVICES 

The State Records Office of Western Australia (SRO) is the Western Australian public records authority 
with responsibility for managing, preserving and providing access to the State's records. The SRO 
operates as an independent Government agency within the Department of Culture and the Arts. 
Under the State Records Act 2000, the SRO and the State Archivist are accountable to the State 
Records Commission. 

The SRO is responsible for: 

 providing records management and archival services to government agencies 

 preserving archival records 

 providing reference services for researchers 

Please see the SRO’s Operational Report 2014-15, available at www.sro.wa.gov.au, for detailed 
reporting against the SRO’s Strategic Plan. 

Regulating information management across State and Local Government 

KEY INITIATIVES/OPERATIONS PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Review of State and Local 
Government Record Keeping 
Plans and Disposal Authorities 
under the State Records Act 
2000. 

The SRO continues to assist government agencies to comply with 
statutory requirements relating to Record Keeping Plans under the 
State Records Act 2000 (The Act).  The Act requires all Government 
agencies to: 

 maintain a Record Keeping Plan approved by the State 
Records Commission, which describes the agency’s record 
keeping systems, disposal arrangements, policies and practices  

 review and report on their Record Keeping Plans to the State 
Records Commission once every five years; and 

 identify, through the Disposal Authority component of the 
Record Keeping Plans, those agency records and data to be 
retained permanently as State archives, those to be archived 
with restricted access, and those to be legally destroyed within 
an approved time frame. 

During the 2014-15 year, the SRO assessed 93 new, reviewed or 
amended Record Keeping Plans, and 20 new or amended Disposal 
Authorities for submission to, and approval by the State Records 
Commission. 

Whole-of-government 
information management 
training   

In 2014-15 the SRO provided tailored training to representatives of 20 
state and local government agencies in metropolitan and regional 
areas of Western Australia. These agencies included Municipal 
Councils, large departments such as Main Roads WA and University 
Student Guilds. 
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Significant advice and 
consultancy provided to 
State and Local Government 
organisations  

The SRO has been providing ongoing assistance to the Swan-
Kalamunda Health Service’s Transition and Decommissioning project, 
as well as advice to a vast range of State and Local Government 
organisations on a daily basis. In total, the SRO provided 109 State 
Government and 67 Local Government consultancies during the 
year. 

W.S. Lonnie Awards In partnership with the Institute of Public Administration Australia 
(IPAA) WA Division, the State Records Commission (SRC) established a 
special category of the W.S. Lonnie Awards in 2006 for excellence in 
annual reporting on the compliance requirements of SRC Standard 2, 
Principle 6.   All State Government organisations required to complete 
an annual report are automatically nominated for the Award.  
Following evaluation of annual reports against the criteria, the 
Department of Fisheries was presented with the Award for the 2013-14 
reporting year.  

Enhancements to the Online 
Retention and Disposal 
Application 

During the year, the SRO implemented usability enhancements to the 
Online Retention and Disposal Application (ORDA), a web-based 
application developed by the SRO to simplify drafting and submission 
of Disposal Authorities by Government clients.  The SRO has made 
ORDA available to other Australasian jurisdictions with the proviso that 
further development of the system be freely shared for the benefit of 
all relevant archival jurisdictions. During the year, 33 Disposal 
Authorities were initiated or amended using ORDA, with 20 receiving 
approval from the State Records Commission. 

Digital Information Survey In March 2015, the SRO surveyed State and Local Government to 
gain a better insight into current digital record keeping practices and 
issues relating to the long-term preservation of digital records and 
data.  The survey was issued to 305 agencies and received a 60% 
response rate.  Survey results indicate that 39% of agencies appear to 
be managing most of their records in digital form only; while a further 
46% of government agencies stated they were in a position to transfer 
their digital archives to the State Archive Collection for ongoing 
management and preservation. Analysis of survey data is currently 
being undertaken and will provide intelligence into digital service 
requirements for government agencies. A report summarising survey 
findings will be published in 2015/16. 
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Preserving and managing the State Archives Collection 

KEY INITIATIVES/OPERATIONS PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Development of SRO 
Collection Management 
System 

The SRO continued development of its new collection management 
system, which is scheduled to “go live” in the latter half of 2015. The 
system is based on the open-source software ICA-AtoM (Access to 
Memory) that was developed internationally and accords with 
International Council of Archives standards. New functionality was 
added throughout the year, as well as testing the migration of data 
from the SRO’s current system to AtoM. Over 755,000 individual State 
archives are publicly searchable via the collection management 
system. 

Review of the SRO Archives 
Keeping Plan 

In accordance with the State Records Act 2000, the SRO’s Archives 
Keeping Plan was reviewed and approved by the State Records 
Commission in August 2014.  A copy of the updated Plan is available 
on the SRO website. 

Work Experience Project The SRO hosted a new Work Experience Project under the 
Commonwealth Government’s Work for the Dole scheme. The 
project provides unemployed people with the opportunity to learn or 
develop office skills, while enabling State archives to be individually 
listed, catalogued and searchable on the SRO’s website. Through the 
project, 37,527 State archives, including records from Sunset Hospital, 
Police stations, Cabinet Ministers, the Department of Health and the 
State Shipping Service, were listed on the SRO’s website, and can 
now be accessed by researchers around the world through the SRO’s 
online catalogue. The SRO anticipates the Work Experience Project to 
continue during 2015/16. 
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Providing government and community access to the State Archives Collection 

KEY INITIATIVES/OPERATIONS PROGRESS/OUTCOMES 2014-15 

Public and government 
access to the State Archives 
Collection 

The SRO provides access to the State Archives Collection primarily 
through a public Search Room in the Alexander Library Building in 
Northbridge, although an increasing number of digitised State 
archives are being made available for viewing on the SRO website. 
The SRO also operates a fee-based loans service for government 
agencies requiring short-term access to State archives transferred to 
SRO custody.  During the year, use of the State Archives Collection 
comprised 3,307 Search Room clients; 13,757 accesses to State 
archives in the Search Room; 59,032 images from State archives taken 
for research purposes; and 1,278 State archives loaned to 
government agencies on a short-term basis to support business 
activities. 

Partnership with 
Ancestry.com.au 

In 2014, the SRO entered into an agreement to provide the family 
history website Ancestry.com.au with a non-exclusive license to 
digitise and provide access to copies of selected State archives. In 
addition to increasing international access to State archives, the 
agreement enables keys sets of State archives to be digitised without 
cost to the SRO for subsequent availability on the SRO website. During 
2014-15, approximately 672,000 images of historical Convict, Land 
and Railway Employee records from the State Archives Collection 
were made available on the Ancestry website. Names listed in these 
documents are now searchable by family history researchers using 
the Ancestry website. 

Geoffrey Bolton Lecture Each year, the SRO hosts the Geoffrey Bolton Lecture in honour of 
Emeritus Professor Geoffrey Bolton AO, a distinguished Australian 
historian who has made significant contributions to the promotion of 
WA history and archives.  The 2014 lecture, entitled “’Here is their 
Spirit’ – the Anzac Centenary and the generation that gave a nation 
its story”, was delivered by the Honourable Dr Brendan Nelson, 
Director of the Australian War Memorial on 3 November, and 
attended by approximately 200 people. Dr Nelson’s speech was also 
broadcast on the ABC’s Radio National program. 
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Margaret Medcalf Award Named in honour of the second State Archivist of WA, the Margaret 
Medcalf Award is hosted annually by the SRO and recognises 
excellence in referencing and research for published or unpublished 
works.  The 2015 Award was presented by the Hon. Minister John Day 
to Dr Kerry King for her PhD thesis A lesser species of homicide – 
manslaughter, negligent and dangerous driving causing death: the 
prosecution of drivers in Western Australia, 1946-2011. A special 
commendation was also presented to Dr Chris Own for his PhD thesis 
‘Weather hot, flies troublesome’. Police in the Kimberley District of 
Western Australia 1882-1901. 

Guide to 1984 State Cabinet 
Records 

The SRO released an online Guide to the 1984 State Cabinet Records 
on Western Australia Day, 1 June 2015, as part of an annual release of 
State Cabinet records from their 30-year access embargo.  The Guide 
includes commentary on the activities and decisions of Brian Burke’s 
Labor Government. The Cabinet Records release received extensive 
press coverage, including analysis of 1984 political and social events 
in The West Australian. 

Lunchtime Seminars The SRO continued its series of free lunchtime seminars to members of 
the public on selected topics relating to State archives and their use.  
The following seminars were held at the SRO during the year: 

 24 October 2014: Dr Lise Summers, From Aeons to AtoM: 
developing a new catalogue system for SRO; 

 4 December 2014: Tom Reynolds: How to Research Colonial 
Secretary’s Office records in the SRO; 

 4 March 2015: Harjit Singh and Tarun Preet Singh, The history of 
Western Australian Sikhs; and 

 27 May 2015: Dr Francesco Gerali, Oil and Archives. What 
sources reveal the history of the petroleum industry in Australia? 

Exhibition of State archives at 
Parliament House 

A collection of WA’s most important and evocative archives was 
exhibited at Parliament House in June 2015 to commemorate the 
800th anniversary of the signing of the Magna Carta. The exhibition 
includes the Proclamation of self-government in WA in 1890, rare 
documents such as a Convict ‘Ticket of Leave’ and ‘Certificate of 
Freedom’ and the 1892 Police report which documents the discovery 
of gold at Kalgoorlie by Paddy Hannan and Thomas Flannagan. An 
online version of the exhibition is available on the SRO website. 
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SECTION 3: SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IMPACTING THE AGENCY 

Issue  DCA response    

Public sector reforms 

In late 2014, the State 
Government announced 
a suite of public sector 
reforms which included 
the Targeted Voluntary 
Severance Scheme, 
Agency Expenditure 
Reviews and the 
Workforce Renewal Policy. 

Workforce Renewal Policy:  Recruitment processes and practices have 
been modified in accordance with the Workforce Renewal Policy, and 
communicated through the Culture and Arts Portfolio.  

Agency Expenditure Review:  The AER is intended to ensure that 
programs delivered by agencies remain a Government priority, and 
continue to be delivered in an efficient and effective manner.  The 
Culture and the Arts Portfolio has commenced internal review of its 
operations and expenditure associated with delivery of its core services.  

Targeted Voluntary Severance Scheme: In accordance with the 
scheme, targeted voluntary separation offers were made to DCA 
employees identified as surplus, or likely to become surplus to 
requirements.   

Memorandum of Understanding: A public sector-wide Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) was signed between the Government and the 
Civil Service Association (CSA) to facilitate consultation and information 
sharing between agencies, their affected employees and the CSA. DCA 
is ensuring relevant and timely communication in accordance with the 
MOU, including regular consultation with the Join Consultative 
Committee.  

Lack of storage capacity 
and infrastructure for State 
archives awaiting transfer 
to the SRO. 

The SRO continues to be unable to accept the transfer of hard copy and 
digital archives from State and Local Government agencies, due to lack 
of storage capacity and digital archive capability. The SRO’s existing 
archival storage facilities reached capacity in July 2001. As a result, the 
State Archivist requires government agencies to maintain control of 
archives awaiting transfer, at their own cost. 

Deferred implementation 
of a compliance 
monitoring regime for 
government information 
management  

Section 60 of the State Records Act 2000 (the Act) requires the State 
Records Commission to monitor compliance with the Act. Currently, 
mechanisms for monitoring agency compliance are limited to the 
Record Keeping Plan review cycle and investigations by the SRO into 
suspected breaches of the Act. The SRO continues to be unable to 
implement a full compliance monitoring regime due to resourcing 
constraints.   
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SECTION 4: DISCLOSURES AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE 

Ministerial directives 
Nil 

Other financial disclosures 
PRICING POLICIES 

Nil 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

New Museum Project (including Welshpool Collection Centre) 

The $428.3 million New Museum Project involves the construction of a new Museum building, the 
refurbishment of the four heritage buildings within the Perth Cultural Centre and upgrade of the WA 
Museum’s Collections and Research Centre in Welshpool.  

The Heritage Works, worth $1.5 million, is currently underway, including reconstruction of existing 
ornamental tourelles to the Beaufort Wing.  Remnant Donnybrook stone from the original stone wall to 
the Beaufort Street frontage was successfully used for replacement stonework.   

Work to upgrade the WA Museum’s Collections and Research Centre in Welshpool is continuing with 
the final stage of refurbishment to the Existing Wet Store to be completed in March 2016.  

An Energy Thermal Solution for the Perth Cultural Centre will be delivered as part of the New Museum 
Project. A shortlist of successful respondents to an Expression of Interest was announced on 11 June 
2015. 

Governance Disclosures 
INTERESTS OF SENIOR OFFICERS  

All senior officers of DCA have acknowledged their understanding of governance disclosure 
requirements as outlined in the Treasurer’s Instructions.  The Director General of DCA, Duncan Ord, is 
the former deputy chair of the Black Swan Theatre Company board. His daughter currently serves as 
chair of the WA Youth Theatre Company board.  All other senior officers of DCA have confirmed they 
have no interests in existing or proposed agency contracts, or matters which may give rise to a real or 
perceived conflict of interest.  



Board and Committee remuneration 
DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS PEER ASSESSOR POOL 

Every three years, DCA advertises state-wide seeking Expressions of Interest from artists and arts 
workers to participate as a peer assessor.  Successful applicants are appointed to the Pool of Peer 
Assessors following approval by the Minister for Culture and the Arts and endorsement from Cabinet.  
For each assessment round, a selection of peer assessors are assigned to a panel on the basis of their 
individual expertise and experience and/or as representatives of particular community sectors. This 
can include consideration of different types of creative practice, regional representation, Indigenous 
representation, young people representation, and Culturally and Linguistically Diverse (CALD) 
representation. Each panel meeting includes a non-voting Chair appointed by DCA.  

The current pool of peer assessors was appointed in 2013 and will continue to operate until 30 June 
2016. Remuneration of peer assessors is based on actual participation in assessment panels and 
performance of related duties. Members and remuneration for the 2014-15 year is detailed in the 
table below: 

Peer assessor Period of membership Remuneration 2014-15 

Felena Alach 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Erica Allia 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Allison Archer 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $4,300 

Meesha Astill 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Michael Barlow 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $2,540 

Kristie Barnett 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Rebecca Baumann  01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $300 

Nathan Beard 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,400 

Guy Ben-Ary 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Emma Bergmeier 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $700 

James Berlyn 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Ann-Marie Biagioni 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Kamisah Jade Bin Denim 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Helena Bogucki 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $500 

Louise Bond 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Daniel Bourke 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Ronald Bradfield 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Anna Brockway 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Jacqui Brown 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $200 
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Kristy Brown 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $500 

Steve Bull 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Sophie Burgoyne 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Grant Burns 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Barbara Bynder/ Barbara Matters 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $2,600 

Grant Capriotti 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $200 

Tim Carter 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $700 

Caitlin Cassidy 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Hannah Chambers 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $2,000 

Dean Chan 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Ann Nie Chong 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $600 

Pip Christmass 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Susan Clarke 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Jacqui Claus 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,100 

Garth Cook 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Thea Constantino 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Tim Cramond 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

James Crombie 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Amanda Curtin 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Sophie Curtis 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Lisa D’Andrea 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Tara Daniel 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Robert Dann 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Jessica Darlow 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,900 

Rachel Davison 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Bayoush Demissie 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Candice Dempsey 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Louise Devenish 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $500 

Lucy Dougan 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $2,040 

Monique Douglas 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Dale Emery 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 
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Nikolina Ergic 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Alice Farley 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Andrea Fernandez 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Steven Finch 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $2,100 

Deborah Fitzpatrick 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $3,600 

Amber Flynn 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,100 

David Forrest 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $740 

Benjamin Forster 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Benjamin Fox 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Katie Freeman 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,700 

Alison Gallyot 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Pamela Gaunt 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $2,840 

Ashlee Giblett 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $900 

Samuel Gillies 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Min Ee Gin 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Vivienne Glance 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Paige Gordon 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Lisa Green 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $600 

Nancy Hackett 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Adam Hall 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Elizabeth Halse 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Philippa Hansen 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Caroline Hardy 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $900 

Jessica Harlond-Kenny 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Dennis Haskell 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Sohan Hayes 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Thomas Heidt 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Kristy Hillhouse 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Marianne Hobson 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Cat Hope 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Lisa Jefferson 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 
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Madeline Joll 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Rebecca Kais 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Brooke Kelly 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Lee Kennedy 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $600 

Christopher Kenworthy 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $600 

Georgia King 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Trisha Kotai-Ewers 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Taryne Laffar 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $1,780 

Carly Lane 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Lilith Lane 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Samantha Leung 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Sofie Lines 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Poppy Lissiman 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,200 

Desi Litis 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Laura Lowther 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Isobel Macaulay 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $900 

Glynn MacDonald 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Sara Males 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $3,600 

Shey Marque 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Bianca Martin 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Jeremy Martin 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Lucille Martin 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Marianna Mazzurra 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $900 

Doone McAlary 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Brendan McCall 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Michael McCall 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Robyn McCarron 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Kelli McCluskey 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Colette McEntee 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Diana McGinn 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Matt McMullen 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $300 
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Devina McPherson 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Helen Miraudo 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Adam Mitchell 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,400 

Paul Moncrieff 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Julia Moody 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Eva Grace Mullaley 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Kate Mullen 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Tom Muller 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $300 

Buffy Murray 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Jonathan Mustard 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $300 

Jennifer Nebel 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,200 

Rhiannon Newton 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Jordan Nix 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $2,800 

Paul O’Connor 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Russya O’Connor 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Zoe O’Neill 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Tony Pankiw 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Symantha Parr 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Tristen Parr 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $400 

Tim Pearn 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Felicity Peters 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Jo Pickup 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Renee Pilkington 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Shaye Preston 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Simone Rice 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Sally Richardson 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $900 

Deborah Robertson 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Gemma Robins 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Catherine Ryan 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $200 

Greg Sanders 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $1,200 

Kester Sappho 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 
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Tanya Schultz 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $1,800 

Teagan Sewell 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

John Sheedy 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Kea Sheppard 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Katya Shevtsov 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Kirsten Sivyer 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Rose Skinner 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Mariyon Slany 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Aimee Smith 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Jacob Snell 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $2,400 

Jasmin Stephens 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Amy Stokes 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Joanna Sulkowski 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $900 

Benjamin Taaffe 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $200 

Shameem Taheri-Lee 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Kynan Tan 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $200 

Acil Tayba 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Evangeline Than 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Denien Toomath 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $2,800 

Malcolm Trail 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $500 

Ella-Rose Trew 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $500 

Tabita Trewin-Combe 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Justina Truscott 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Michael Tucak 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Sarah Vagliviello  01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Jenny Vila 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $2,300 

Joanna Wakefield 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Jarred Wall 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 N/A 

Phaedra Watts 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Kylie Weall-Basic 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Joshua Webb Arts & Design 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 
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Alison Welburn 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Brad Wesson 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

David Whish-Wilson 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Michelle White 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $300 

Christopher Williams 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,800 

Gina McGill/Gina 
Williams/Kalyakoorl 

01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $1,390 

Aarom Wilson  01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $300 

Diane Wolfer 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Sharmila Woods 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 N/A 

Irma Woods 01/09/2013 – 30/06/2016 $800 

Malachi Alister Yiap 01/07/2014 – 30/06/2015 $200 

TOTAL REMUNERATION $87,730 

Other legal requirements 
RESEARCH AND ADVERTISING EXPENDITURE 

Expenditure incurred by DCA in relation to advertising agencies, market research organisation, polling 
organisations, direct mail organisations and media advertising organisations during the financial year 
is detailed below in compliance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907. 

EXPENDITURE TYPE  2014-15 ($) 

Expenditure with Advertising Agencies 0 

Expenditure with Market Research Agencies 

Patterson Research Group 

 

9,700 

Expenditure with Polling Agencies 

- Patterson Research Group 

- Instinct and Reason 

 

12,420 

7,750 

Expenditure with direct mail agencies 0 

Expenditure with Media Advertising Agencies 

Carat Australia Media Services 

 

24,240 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 54,110 
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DISABILITY ACCESS AND INCLUSION PLAN OUTCOMES 

Outcome 1: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the 
services of, and any events organised by the Department.  

DCA has a formal MOU with the Disability Services Commission that aims to achieve a creative, 
inclusive and welcoming community which offers opportunities for people of all ability to participate 
in everyday art and cultural activities in WA.  The MOU delivered several strategic initiatives in 2014, 
including a showcase of works by 11 West Australian artists with disability at the Regional Arts Australia 
Summit in Kalgoorlie in October 2014, and the 2015 Program of Art Partners, a mentorship program 
that matches people with disability with mentors, and provides opportunity to participate in 
mainstream art classes and activities. 

DCA’s Online Grants application portal launched in January 2014 provides increased accessibility for 
applicants to DCA’s grants programs and funding schemes.  

A new clause was incorporated in all funding agreements requiring arts organisations to maintain 
awareness of strategies for including people with disabilities in the arts.  

Outcome 2: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the 
buildings and other facilities of the Department. 

 In line with amendments to the National Construction Code, auditing of access to all Department 
buildings is continuing. Access is the highest priority for maintenance work along with works that 
ensure the safety of the public, people and collections. DCA recently completed the installation of 
tactile floor indicators within the Swan Bell Tower. 

Outcome 3: People with disabilities receive information from the Department in a format that will 
enable them to access the information as readily as other people are able to access it.  

Publications, including the grants handbooks and grant application forms, follow the typeface, 
branding and layout guidelines contained in DCA’s style guide. This complies with the Disability 
Services Commission guidelines for making information accessible. The DCA website is formatted to 
meet all requirements detailed by Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0. All documents available 
for download are tagged for accessibility and, where possible, are provided in an alternative plain 
text file format. All videos have transcripts attached. 

Outcome 4: People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff of the 
Department as other people.  

A presentation on disability access and inclusion, including customer service for people with 
disabilities, is included in the Culture and Arts Portfolio Induction Program for staff. Staff with disability 
are provided support through DCA’s Occupational Health and Safety strategies. 

Outcome 5: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints 
to the Department.  

The DCA’s complaints process is easily accessible online. Feedback and complaints mechanisms are 
in place and are currently being reviewed to ensure they are being appropriately implemented. 
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Outcome 6: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any 
public consultation by the Department.  

To support people with disabilities, their families and carers to attend external consultations and 
public gatherings, DCA provides event information in clear, concise language and in accessible 
formats. It also holds events in accessible venues and provides consultation information in alternative 
formats, on request. 

Outcome 7: People with disability have the same opportunities as other people to obtain and 
maintain employment with a public authority.  

Information and policy aimed at encouraging and facilitating the recruitment and retention of 
people with disability has been incorporated within DCA’s Recruitment, Selection and Appointment 
Manual. All staff have access to the information through the DCA intranet. DCA HR addresses this in 
the CMS training to ensure that managers are equipped with the understanding of the needs of 
people with disability during the recruitment process, particularly interviewing.  DCA has set targets to 
increase employment with people with disabilities. 

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and 
Ethical Codes  
PUBLIC SECTOR STANDARDS IN HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

DCA Human Resources (DCA HR) provides a range of consultancy and administrative services, 
including payroll, recruitment, classification and establishment, performance development, training, 
workers compensation management, employee relations and occupational safety and health (OSH) 
to DCA, as well as other agencies within the Culture and Arts Portfolio.  DCA HR is responsible for 
ensuring these services are delivered in accordance with Public Sector legislative and regulatory 
frameworks, including the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management as established 
by the Public Sector Commission.  Over the 2014-15 year, DCA HR continued to work with senior 
officers and management across the Culture and Arts Portfolio to ensure compliance with the 
Standards and related legislation. DCA HR regularly reviews and updates policies, procedures and 
guidelines, and provides ongoing support and education to increase overall awareness and 
workforce competency in related matters.  

Employment 

HR consultants are available to provide guidance and support in employment matters to staff of all 
Culture and Arts Portfolio agencies.  In the past year, HR staff continued to facilitate compliance with 
employment standards by communicating regularly with representatives across the portfolio, 
providing up-to-date information to staff via the DCA Intranet, and attending line manager meetings 
as appropriate.  One breach of standards was filed in the past financial year.  Following investigation, 
the Culture and Arts Portfolio was found not to be in breach of the standards. 
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Performance Management 

DCA HR has policies and guidelines which are available to all staff via the intranet. HR consultants 
offer immediate guidance and support on issues pertaining to performance management. 
Consultants attend line manager meetings to update staff and address any issues.   No breaches 
were filed in relation to performance management standards in the past financial year.  

Grievance Resolution 

All line managers and staff can access comprehensive information including policy and guidelines. 
DCA HR conducts training across the Portfolio to all managers to equip them with further knowledge 
and understanding.  A team of HR consultants work alongside Portfolio agency staff to provide 
support on how to manage and resolve potential grievances. Consultants attend line manager 
meetings to update staff and address any issues.  No breaches of standards were filed in relation to 
grievance resolution in the past financial year. 

Redeployment 

DCA HR consultants provide support to the Portfolio agencies on matters of redeployment. 
Consultants attend line manager meetings to update staff and address any issues. No breaches of 
standards were filed in relation to redeployment in the past financial year. 

Termination and Discipline  

Consultants from DCA HR are in each agency to provide an immediately accessible source of 
guidance and support on matters of termination and discipline. Consultants attend line manager 
meetings to update staff and address any issues. No breaches of standards were filed in the past 
financial year. 

ETHICAL CONDUCT 

Public sector code of ethics  

The Public Sector Code of Ethics forms a key component of the DCA portfolio induction for new 
employees, and is reinforced through a range of supplementary training and information provided to 
all Portfolio staff.  DCA also encourages staff to supplement their knowledge and awareness of 
ethical conduct by attending relevant training workshops conducted by the Public Sector 
Commission, Equal Opportunity Commission and the Corruption and Crime Commission. There were 
no breaches or potential breaches of the Code of Ethics during the financial year 

Accountable and Ethical Decision Making (AEDM) 

All Portfolio staff are required to complete the Accountable and Ethical Decision Making (AEDM) 
training module, which provides a broad awareness and understanding of the standards of 
behaviour and values expected from staff members in fulfilling their day to day roles. The training is 
facilitated by DCA and reinforces compliance requirements to ensure that the workforce is equipped 
in making ethical decisions that affect the broader community. Completion rates for 2014-15 
continued to be at a high standard with 100 per cent of staff completing AEDM training.  
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Culture and Arts Portfolio Code of Conduct 

The Culture and Arts Code of Conduct is an extension to the Public Sector’s Code of Ethics and was 
revised in early 2015. This policy provides the framework for expected standards of conduct, decision 
making and integrity for all Culture and Arts Portfolio staff members based around the principles of 
personal integrity, relationships with others and accountability. The revised policy was distributed and 
acknowledged by all staff. DCA HR continues to work closely with line managers to ensure new and 
existing staff are kept informed.  There were no breaches or potential breaches of the Code of 
Conduct during the financial year. 

Attendance at Events Policy  

Following the Public Sector Commission’s investigation into sponsorship controls within Healthway, 
DCA developed an Attendance at Events policy to provide guidance to staff and a related online 
workflow requiring Director General approval to minimise potential conflicts. The policy works as an 
extension of the Culture and Arts Code of Conduct and Gifts and Hospitality policy and clearly 
establishes DCA’s requirements in relation to attendance by staff at culture and arts events funded by 
DCA and acceptable standards of behaviour. The new policy has been distributed and 
acknowledged by all DCA staff.   

DCA Fraud and Corruption Control Plan 

DCA is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and accountability and 
maintains a principle of zero tolerance to fraud and corruption. In August 2014, DCA developed its 
first Fraud and Corruption Control Plan. The plan details DCA’s approach to fraud and corruption 
prevention, detection and response. A series of information sessions were held through late 2014 and 
early 2015 to communicate details of the Plan and associated responsibilities to all DCA staff. Those 
unable to attend in person were provided with electronic copies of the document for their noting 
and acknowledgement. As at June 2015, the initiative has received a 100% response rate from 
current DCA staff (excluding staff on secondment and extended leave).  In June 2015, DCA’s Fraud 
and Corruption Control Policy was reviewed and updated to reflect the plan, with specific emphasis 
on the mandatory requirement to report suspected fraud or corruption and confirmation of whistle-
blower protection. 

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 

Workforce Trends in Significant Workforce Issues 

The Culture and Arts Portfolio is represented in key diversity groups as follows: 

 Aboriginal people: 1% 

 Women in Management: 49% 

 People with Disability: 2% 

 Culturally Diverse Backgrounds: 13% 

 Youth aged 25 and under: 2% 

Representation for Aboriginal people, People with Disability and Youth aged 25 and under are 
marginally below the representation present within the broader WA Public Sector. The DCA has 
implemented initiatives this financial year to address the gap including the hosting of school-based 
and Aboriginal trainees. Cadetships, Internships and Graduate Programs are planned for the 
following year. 
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In an effort to meet Public Sector Workforce Renewal Policy expectations, and continue to deliver a 
vibrant cultural sector to the WA community, DCA has developed workforce strategies to help realign 
structures and roles.  

Workforce Development 

 Professional development and training 

Professional development at DCA is strategically aligned with current and future business 
requirements. In 2014-15, DCA staff attended a wide range of courses conducted by accredited 
training providers to enhance their job-related skills and professional development objectives. A new 
training policy was implemented in 2014-2015 and provides a framework for managing professional 
development and increases accountability for funds allocated for this purpose. 

 Staff Development System 

The DCA has a performance development system that complies with the Performance Management 
Standards of merit, equity and probity set out by the public sector. The system, known as ‘Staff 
Development System’, continues to provide clarity regarding the work expected of an individual and 
encourages two-way conversations between line managers and staff members. The current system is 
under constant review to reflect the ever changing needs of the organisation and to align 
performance with strategic plans and organisational objectives. 

 Staff Induction 

In addition to the Public Sector Induction, DCA provides a half-day induction program for all new staff 
in the Culture and Arts Portfolio that covers a range of topics including information on the Portfolio 
agencies, grievance resolution, ethics, record keeping, financial accountability, occupational health 
and safety and diversity.  The induction also provides a networking opportunity for new staff. A total of 
55 staff across the Portfolio attended induction training in the past financial year. 

 Aboriginal Cultural Awareness Training 

DCA recognises the value of diversity within the workplace and is committed to promoting and 
increasing cultural diversity, particularly Aboriginal Culture. All staff within DCA have undertaken the 
Aboriginal Cultural Awareness training provided online by the Public Sector Commission to increase 
their awareness and knowledge of Aboriginal Culture.  Further awareness and targeted training will 
continue to be offered as part of the DCA Aboriginal Employment Strategy. 

 Traineeships 

DCA’s strategic workforce plan includes a commitment to attract and retain a younger workforce. 
DCA has provided opportunity to two trainees, one school-based and one Aboriginal trainee, to work 
towards a formal qualification whilst gaining valuable life and work experience. The traineeships 
encompass employment, training and mentoring.  Further internships, cadetships and traineeships are 
being considered. 
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Recordkeeping Plan  
DCA 

As required under the State Records Act 2000 (the Act), DCA’s Recordkeeping Plan was reviewed 
and registered with the SRO in 2010. DCA continues to implement strategies to ensure that employees 
are aware of their compliance responsibilities under the Act. A major review of recordkeeping 
systems was undertaken in 2011. Recordkeeping officers continue to monitor, review and update 
practices to maintain and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of DCA’s recordkeeping and use 
of DCA’s electronic TRIM system. All staff of DCA have access to TRIM. Regular recordkeeping training 
is provided to all new and existing staff to raise awareness of recordkeeping responsibilities and 
provide instruction in the use of TRIM. Training and support is also provided on a one-on-one basis as 
required. The recordkeeping training program is reviewed regularly and staff usage of TRIM is 
monitored to identify gaps in usage. Training material is regularly revised to address any updates in 
the system and to incorporate frequently asked questions. The organisation’s induction program 
addresses employee roles and responsibilities in regard to their compliance with the organisation’s 
Recordkeeping Plan. 

State Records Office 

Revision of the SRO’s Retention and Disposal Schedule was completed and the revised Schedule was 
approved by the State Records Commission in December 2014.  The SRO has continued to improve 
internal record keeping and workflow systems through: 

 Implementation of recordkeeping practices to capture and manage born-digital records in 
electronic format and cease the requirement to print and file electronic records;  

 Scanning records received in hard copy for distribution and access purposes; and 

 Implementation of the revised Schedule to appraise and sentence functional records. 

Training sessions were provided to SRO staff on the revised recordkeeping practices. 

Freedom of Information 
Under Schedule 2 of the Regulations of the Freedom of Information Act 1992 (the Act) DCA 
coordinates freedom of information applications for Portfolio organisations. As prescribed in Section 
96 of the Act, DCA publishes an up to date information page confirming the DCA’s commitment to 
the right of all Western Australians to have access to government information in accordance with the 
Act. The information page is available on DCA’s website and gives details on how a person can 
apply for access to DCA’s documents.  23 FOI applications were received during the 2014-15 year. 
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Government Policy Requirements  
SUBSTANTIVE EQUALITY 

DCA is committed to the elimination of systemic discrimination, particularly of a racial, cultural and 
religious nature, from its policies, practices and services. A Substantive Equality Policy covers the 
Culture and Arts Portfolio and the DCA continues to support agencies in these endeavours. A 
Substantive Equality Reference Committee made up of representatives from each Portfolio agency 
meets on a needs basis to discuss strategies and policies. A presentation of Substantive Equality forms 
part of the DCA staff induction program and the policy is available electronically to the Portfolio 
through the intranet. 

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY, HEALTH AND INJURY MANAGEMENT 

DCA is committed to providing and maintaining a healthy and safe working environment for all of its 
staff members, contractors and visitors. This is supported through policies, procedures and work 
practices compliant with the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 and the Workers 
Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. DCA is committed to assisting staff return to work 
after a work-related injury or illness.  

 During 2014-15, managers received training in their responsibilities relating to workers 
compensation, injury management and  manual handling techniques 

 Activities, including a recognition and development event attended by Safety and health 
representatives from DCA, were held across the Portfolio during October 2014 to celebrate Safe 
Work Australia month. 

 DCA has an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) which is available to employees. Staff are 
made aware of this service at Induction and via the DCA intranet. The DCA OSH consultant 
facilitates EAP access. EAP usage is reported on a quarterly basis to all Portfolio agencies. 

 DCA facilitates OSH consultation through its OSH committee, the election of safety and health 
representatives, hazard and incident reporting, and workplace inspections.  

 Staff are made aware of these processes at their employee induction through specific OSH 
training and access to OSH information on the DCA intranet.  

 A formal review of DCA’s OSH management system was undertaken in 2012 using the WorkSafe 
Plan. An annual implementation plan is in place. The following was delivered in 2014-15:  

- training for managers and supervisors in Workers Compensation and Injury Management 

- training in manual handling for staff across the Portfolio 

- flu vaccination program 

- health and wellbeing sessions through the year, including men’s and women’s health  

- review of the Injury Management Policy and Procedure  

- assistance reviewing high risk activities and developing safe work procedures provided to 
the Art Gallery of WA  

- assistance developing site inspection processes provided to the WA Museum, State Library 
of WA and DCA; and 

- OSH Intranet pages reviewed and updated with new resources. 



OSH Performance indicator table 

 

Measure Actual Results Results against Target 

2013-14 2014-15 Target Comment on Result 

Number of Fatalities 0 0 0 No change 

Lost time injury and/or disease 
incidence rate 

0 0 0 or 10% 
improvement 

No lost time injuries were 
recorded during 14/15 

Lost time injury and/or disease 
severity rate 

0 0 0 or 10% 
improvement 

 

Percentage of injured workers 
returned to work within 13 weeks 

 

N/A 100% 80%  

Percentage of injured workers 
returned to work within 26 weeks 

N/A 100% 80%  

Percentage of managers trained 
in occupational safety, health 
and injury management 
responsibilities 

 

75% 

 

87.8% 

 

80% 

Training was delivered to 
managers and supervisors 
on manual handling, 
workers compensation 
and injury management 
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SECTION 5: KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Certification of Key Performance Indicators 

  



Introduction 
DCA’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been developed in accordance with Treasurer’s 
Instruction 904 to evaluate the portfolio’s performance in achieving the Government’s Desired 
Outcomes and provide an overview of the critical and material aspects of service provision.  The KPIs 
measure performance at the whole of portfolio level.  The KPIs for each of the portfolio organisations 
support and contribute to the KPIs identified for the portfolio.  The result is a consolidated picture of 
what the culture and arts portfolio is delivering and the impact it is having on the community of 
Western Australia. 

PORTFOLIO SERVICES 

Services provided by the culture and arts portfolio are listed in the 2014-15 Budget Papers under 
Culture and the Arts.  Funding for these services is provided by Parliament through a direct 
appropriation from Treasury to the Department and each statutory authority, with the exception of 
capital works funding which is allocated to the Department.  The services listed are: 

1. Arts Industry Support 

2. Screen Production Industry Support 

3. Venue Management Services 

4. Art Gallery Services 

5. Library and Information Services 

6. Museum Services; and 

7. Government Record Keeping and Archival Services. 

Notwithstanding the clustering of services under Culture and the Arts in the Budget Papers, DCA is 
directly responsible for producing services (1) and (7).  The balance is the responsibility of ScreenWest 
Inc. (2), Perth Theatre Trust (3), Art Gallery of Western Australia (4), State Library of Western Australia 
(5), and the Western Australian Museum (6).  

The services reflect the total business of the portfolio.  In accordance with their enabling legislation, 
each portfolio organisation separately prepares an annual report and reports on their performance 
with respect to the specific services they deliver. 

GOVERNMENT GOALS 

The Department of Culture and the Arts contributes to the achievement of the Government Goal: 

“Greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of 
all Western Australians”. 

GOVERNMENT DESIRED OUTCOMES 

The Government’s Desired Outcomes for the portfolio are:  

1. A creative, sustainable and accessible culture and arts sector; and 

2. Western Australia’s natural, cultural and documentary collections are preserved, accessible 
and sustainable. 
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Achievement of the portfolio’s Government Desired Outcomes will facilitate the achievement of a 
creative community that participates in and values culture and the arts as essential to the quality of 
life and well-being of all people throughout Western Australia.  In addition, Western Australia’s natural, 
cultural and documentary collections continued to be preserved and made accessible to the 
community.  The KPIs describe the level of success of the services provided by the culture and arts 
portfolio in fulfilling the Outcomes.  

MARKET RESEARCH 

To measure the “Sustainability” and “Accessibility” Key Effectiveness Indicators, the Department 
commissioned Patterson Research Group to conduct the Arts Monitor survey as part of their quarterly 
omnibus telephone survey FlashPoll. The survey utilised a sample of 410 across Western Australia with a 
providing a theoretical survey error of ±4.9 per cent at the 95 per cent level of confidence with a total 
of 406 interviews completed (4 excluded due to connection to DCA) from Monday the 4th May – 8th 
May 2015. Respondents interviewed were aged 18 years or over and were randomly selected within 
each household with responses weighted to match ABS age and gender groupings, and the 
population balance between Perth metropolitan area (73 per cent) and regional Western Australia 
(23 per cent). The survey is undertaken in compliance with the ISO 20252 Standard for Market, Opinion 
and Social Research.  

The ‘Creativity’ indicator is compiled through the biennial DCA Client Feedback Survey administered 
by Patterson Research Group. The survey gathers responses from grant applicants (successful and 
unsuccessful), and key funded organisations to gain feedback from the Department’s clients and key 
stakeholders in order to track trends in perceived quality and value of service delivery. The 2014 Client 
Feedback Survey received the following responses from the target respondent groups: 

 Key Funded Organisations (KFOs) (N=42); 

 Grant Recipients from the last 2 years (2012-2013) (N= 313); 

 Non-Successful Grant Applicants from the last 2 years (2012-2013) (N= 271).  

The ScreenWest component of the ‘Creativity’ indicator measures the satisfaction of funding 
applicants with the funding process and provides an assessment of the screen industry sector’s 
satisfaction with the creative outcomes being achieved through ScreenWest’s ‘creative’ funding 
programs. 

 

  

   DCA Annual Report 2014-15  |  64 



Government Desired Outcome 1: A creative, 
sustainable and accessible culture and arts 
sector. 
KEY EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS 

Creativity 

Creativity 2014-15 
Target 

2014-15 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

Proportion of funding applicants satisfied with the key 
elements of the “creative”1 funding programs. 

76%  77%  77% 64% 

The three year rolling average number of Western 
Australian screen practitioners / production 
companies nominated for major national screen 
industry awards for projects that have received 
ScreenWest funding support 

24 22 35 32 

Explanatory Notes  

Creativity’ is one of the public value principles driving public value outcomes for the people of 
Western Australia from investment in arts and cultural activity.  The indicator is a combined measure 
of the level of satisfaction with the creative process of the grants application process (grant 
applicants) and an assessment of the degree to which DCA meets the needs of the sector, 
government and the public (funded organisations). The responses for 2014-15 show the level of 
satisfaction from grant applicants is relatively unchanged from previous years with an index score of 
70 (68 in 2012 and 70 in 2010).  The assessment by funded organisations of the degree to which DCA 
meets the needs of the sector, government and community, indicated a significant improvement 
between 2012 (index of 62) and 2014 (index of 70).  

 

  

1  Creativity “depends on the cultural values, preferences, and realities of residents and other stakeholders in a given community” (Arts, 
culture, creativity and communities: a framework for measurement: The Urban Institute 2002).  
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Sustainability 

Sustainability 2014-15 
Target 

2014-15 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

Perceived value of culture and the arts (including the 
Screen Industry) to the Western Australian community.  

78% 77% 76% 75% 

Proportion of triennially funded organisations within 
the culture and arts sector regarded as financially 
healthy. 

20% 21%. 26% 25% 

The three year rolling average gross value of film, 
television and digital media production supported by 
ScreenWest ($ million) 

48.91 44.95 39.42 37.37 

The value of production generated for each dollar of 
ScreenWest investment ($ ratio) 

6.41:1 7.91:1 6.90:1 8.14:1 

Explanatory Notes  

The first sustainability KPI provides an assessment of the extent to which the community values the role 
of culture and arts and the value of Western Australian Film and Television to the community.  This 
indicator was measured by the Arts Monitor survey administered by Patterson Research Group.   

The sustainability indicator is the combined response for the value of both the arts and culture sector 
and the screen industry. The responses for 2014-15 show the value of arts and culture to the 
community recording an index score of 78 and the value of Western Australian screen industry 
recording an index score of 76.  The combined total shows an index score of 77 indicating a high level 
of value for the arts in the community. 

The second sustainability KPI measure, which is also utilised by the Australia Council for the Arts, 
provides an indication of the financial health and sustainability of the triennially funded culture and 
arts organisations.  The assessment is based upon the percentage of triennially funded organisations 
that meet all of the following indicators:  

 Reserves greater than 20 per cent of turnover; 

 Working Capital greater than 2.0 (asset/liability ratio); and  

 Cash reserves of greater than 10 weeks’ worth of expenditure. 

The proportion of triennially funded organisations within the culture and arts sector regarded as 
financially healthy in 2014-15 is 21 per cent.  

The third sustainability KPI measure shows the 2014-15 actual rolling average value of film, television 
and digital media production, which is lower than the 2014-15 target due to changes in the timing of 
when productions start principal photography (filming).   It is not appropriate to draw conclusions 
about trends in movements in the 'value of production' in a single financial year as there is often a 
substantial time lapse between a grant funding commitment and the start of principle photography. 

The 2014-15 actual is higher than the 2014-15 target as overall ScreenWest investment levered a 
higher value of production per ScreenWest dollar invested. 
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Accessibility 

Accessibility 2014-15 
Target 

2014-15 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

Proportion of Western Australians that perceive 
culture and arts sector (including the Screen Industry) 
events to be accessible.  

64% 63% 58% 61% 

Explanatory Notes 

The accessibility KPI provides an assessment of the extent the community perceives attending or 
participating in arts and cultural activities, or viewing Western Australian produced film and television 
productions to be accessible.  This indicator was measured by the Arts Monitor survey administered by 
Patterson Research Group.  The responses for 2014/15 show an overall index score of 63, which is a 
combined score for the culture and arts sector of 68 and the screen industry of 58. This accessibility 
index score for arts accessibility is the highest score since the inclusion of this question in the survey. 
The Accessibility score has increased from 58 in 2013-14 to 63 in 2014-15 is mainly due to an increase in 
the ScreenWest 2014-15 accessibility figure compared to 2013-14.  

KEY EFFICIENCY INDICATORS 

Arts Industry Support, Screen Production Industry Support and Venue Management Services 

Key Efficiency Indicators 2014-15 
Target 

2014-15 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

Service 1: Arts 
Industry Support 

Average cost per grant 
application processed  

$881 $946 $1,079 $1,325 

Service 2: Screen 
Production Industry 
Support 

Average cost per grant 
application processed.  

$4,104 $4,218 $4,088 $3,441 

Grants Operations Expense as a 
Percentage of Direct Grants 
Approved 

17.76% 11.62% 11.68% NA 

Service 3: Venue 
Management 
Services 

Average cost per performance  $31,710 $21,424 $27,462 $27,800 
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Explanatory Notes  

The Outcome 1 Key Efficiency Indicators relate the level of resource input to the services provided.  
Measurement of these indicators excludes the funding allocation that is provided to Arts Industry 
Support and Screen Production Industries. 

The average cost per grant application processed is higher than the 2014-15 target is mainly due to 
ScreenWest receiving fewer applications than originally estimated (570 versus 673).  The reduction in 
application numbers can be attributed to ScreenWest consciously moving towards one-off 
applications to streamline administration and allow recipients to better focus on their activities e.g. 
SuperDoc and Slate Development Investment Funds; greater clarity regarding funding guidelines and 
assessment criteria and the timing of funding rounds.  Note: The 2013-14 actuals has been adjusted to 
reflect the actual result for the year. 

The grants operation expense percentage is lower than the target mainly due to a higher level of 
funding commitments approved; this increase reflects the quality of grant applications that were 
received and were able to be supported.  In addition savings were made in overall grants operations 
related expenses 

The reduction in the average cost per performance for Venue Management Services is mainly 
attributable to a significant increase in performances held in secondary spaces at the State Theatre 
Centre that were not originally included in the Target figure.  This therefore resulted in a reduction in 
the unit cost per performance. 

  

   DCA Annual Report 2014-15  |  68 



Government Desired Outcome 2: Western 
Australia’s natural, cultural and documentary 
collections are preserved, accessible and 
sustainable. 
KEY EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS 

Preservation 

Preservation 2014-15 
Target 

2014-15 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

Extent to which Western Australia’s natural, cultural and 
documentary collections, that require preservation, are 
preserved. 

80% 76% 75% 80% 

Explanatory Notes 

The preservation KPI provides an assessment of the extent to which the State’s art, museum, heritage 
and archives collections are preserved.  Preservation of the entire collection is not required, therefore 
this measure only relates to that part of the collection that is determined by the portfolio organisations 
as requiring preservation.  The indicator measures the extent to which the portfolio’s collection 
preservation outcomes have been met.   

Preservation targets are lower than expected mainly due to fluctuating temperature and humidity 
conditions beyond acceptable parameters which has affected the efficiency of the air-conditioning 
in some stack areas at the State Library. The completion of the new Rare Materials Storage Room has 
ensured that rare items are now stored in premium conditions. 

Accessibility  

Accessibility 2014-15 
Target 

2014-15 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

The number of accesses to Western Australia’s natural, 
cultural and documentary collections per capita2. 

2.204 1.853 2.260 2.253 

Percentage of clients satisfied with the services 
associated with accessing Western Australia’s natural, 
cultural and documentary collections. 

95% 94% 95% 96% 

Number of Accesses 5,589,888 4,783,534 5,764,639 5,570,689 

2 Population (Per Capita) based on ABS Data table 3101.0 (WA): 2012/13 = 2,472,200; 2013/14 = 2,550,900;  2014-15 target (Budget 
Papers) = 2,535,700 and 2014-15 = 2,581,700 
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Explanatory Notes 

The accessibility KPIs provide the number of accesses and the number of accesses per capita to the 
State’s art, museum, heritage and archives collections and the level of satisfaction associated with 
the various aspects of service delivery associated with accessing the State’s collections.  The number 
of accesses is based on Museum, Art Gallery, State Library and State Records Office visitor 
attendance figures, and accesses via Internet User Sessions, etc.  Accesses for the State Library 
include the number of material exchanges between the State Library and Local Government public 
libraries.   

The reduction in accesses in 2014-15 is mainly due to a reduction in exhibition programs at the Art 
Gallery than originally planned.  The variance in access targets between 2013-14 and 2014-15 is 
mainly due to a decreased number of unique visits to the WA Museum website as a result of exhibition 
programming differences between the two years.  In 2013-14 there were two paid exhibitions with 
high rates of visitation to the website for ticketing (Dinosaur Discovery and Secrets of the Afterlife), 
which did not reoccur in 2014-15. 

Sustainability 

Sustainability 2014-15 
Target 

2014-15 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

Value of collection renewal, content development, 
expansion and/or maintaining the physical integrity of 
the collection as a proportion of collection value. 

7% 8% 8% 7% 

Explanatory Notes  

The sustainability KPI provides an assessment of the portfolio’s capacity to annually renew a portion of 
the collection, develop content, expand and/or maintain the physical integrity of the State’s art, 
museum and heritage collections. Collection renewal, content development, expansion and/or 
maintaining the physical integrity are essential to the sustainability of the collections. 
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KEY EFFICIENCY INDICATORS 

Art Gallery Services, Library and Information Services, Museum Services and Government 
Recordkeeping and Archival Services 

Key Efficiency Indicator 2014-15 
Target 

2014-15 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

Service 4: Art Gallery 
Services 

 

Average cost of Art Gallery 
services per Art Gallery 
access. 

$29 $35 $25 $23 

Service 5: Library and 
Information Services 

 

Average cost of State 
Library services per State 
Library access/client 
interaction. 

$16 $17 $18 $16 

Service 6: Museum Services 

 

Average cost of State 
Library services per new 
public library collection 
item. 

$67 $57 $56 $60 

Average cost of Museum 
services per Museum 
access. 

$36 $40 $37 $40 

Service 7: Government 
Recordkeeping and Archival 
Services 

 

Average cost of State 
Records Office (SRO) 
services per access to the 
State archives collection. 

$9 $9 $10 $15 

Average cost of SRO 
services per regulatory 
service. 

$466 $454 $459 $629 

Explanatory Notes  

The Outcome 2 Key Efficiency Indicators relate the level of resource input to the services provided. 

Art Gallery’s average cost is higher than budgeted as the number of accesses was lower than 
expected due to the reduced exhibition program during the year. 

State Library’s average cost of delivering new public library collection items is lower than target is 
mainly due to an increased number of e-books added to the collection.  The average cost per 
access is higher than anticipated due to the number of accesses lower than target. 

The average cost of Museum services is higher than target due to a higher total cost of services than 
expected.   

The number of SRO regulatory accesses has increased from the previous year resulting in a lower 
average cost than expected.  
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SECTION 6: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES 

Certification of financial statements 
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Independent audit opinion 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Notes 2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

COST OF SERVICES 

Expenses 

Employee benefits expense 6, 7, 32 16,329 14,339 

Supplies and services 8 4,843 5,709 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 9 1,296 1,222 

Accommodation expenses 10 3,587 2,789 

Grants and subsidies 11 34,517 32,084 

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 17 30 -

Other expenses 12 155 1,903 

Total cost of services 60,757 58,046 

Income 

Revenue 

User charges & fees 13 304 293 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 14 425 389 

Interest revenue 15 - 1

Other revenue 16 820 709 

Total Revenue 1,549 1,392 

Total Income other than Income from State Government 1,549 1,392 

NET COST OF SERVICES 59,208 56,654 

Income from State Government 

Service Appropriation 6,18 51,752 53,380 

Royalties for Regions Fund 2,875 -

Grants and subsidies from State Government 180 250 

Assets / Liabilities Assumed (Transferred) 6,18 - 6,631 

Services received free of charge 785 659 

Total Income from State Government 6,18 55,592 60,920 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (3,616) 4,266 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Items not classified subsequently to profit or loss 

Change in asset revaluation reserve 30 925 1,077 

Total other comprehensive income 925 1,077 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (2,691) 5,343 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2015 

Notes 2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 31 11,205 18,499 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,31 1,106 438 

Receivables 20 1,574 1,232 

Amounts receivable for services 21 200 200 

Other current assets 22 237 371 

Total Current Assets 14,322 20,740 

Non-Current Assets 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 6,19,31 0 631 

Receivables 20 75 150 

Amounts receivable for services 8,21 3,455 3,655 

Property, plant and equipment 23 71,439 59,167 

Intangible assets 25 1,464 1,468 

Total Non-Current Assets 76,433 65,071 

TOTAL ASSETS 90,755 85,811 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 

Payables 27 13,227 20,067 

Provisions 7,28 2,430 2,791 

Other current liabilities 29 1 1

Total Current Liabilities 15,658 22,859 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Provisions 6,28 1,613 1,077 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,613 1,077 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,271 23,936 

NET ASSETS 73,484 61,875 

EQUITY 

Contributed equity 30 34,056 19,756 

Reserves 30 43,955 43,030 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 30 (4,527) (911) 

TOTAL EQUITY 73,484 61,875 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Notes Contributed 
Equity 

$000 

Reserves 
$000 

Accumulated 
surplus/ 
(deficit) 

$000 

Total 
Equity 

$000 

Balance at 1 July 2013 11,530 41,953 (5,177) 48,306 

Surplus/(deficit) - - 4,266 4,266 

Other comprehensive income - 1,077 - 1,077

Total comprehensive income for the period 0 1,077 4,266 5,343 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners: 

Capital appropriations 8,226 - - 8,226 

Total 8,226 - - 8,226 

Balance at 30 June 2014 19,756 43,030 (911) 61,875

Balance at 1 July 2014 19,756 43,030 (911) 61,875

Surplus/(deficit) - - (3,616) (3,616) 

Other comprehensive income - 925 - 925

Total comprehensive income for the period - 925 (3,616) (2,691) 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners: 

Capital appropriations 14,300 - - 14,300 

Total  14,300 - - 14,300 

Balance at 30 June 2015 34,056 43,955 (4,527) 73,484 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Notes 2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 

Service appropriation 51,752 52,422 

Capital appropriation 14,300 8,226 

Holding account drawdown 200 200 

Regional Royalties Fund 2,875 - 

27th pay transfer - Machinery of Government Change - (1,156)

State Grants & Subsidies 165 - 

Net cash provided by State Government 69,292 59,692 

Utilised as follows: 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Payments 

Employee benefits (15,490) (9,460) 

Supplies & Services (4,444) (6,888) 

Accommodation (2,907) (2,288) 

Grants and subsidies (41,792) (32,600) 

GST Payments on purchases (4,960) (4,203) 

GST payments to taxation authority - - 

Other Payments (205) (1,901)

Receipts 

User charges and fees 265 425 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 468 389 

Interest received - 1 

GST Receipts on sales 58 306 

GST received from taxation authority 3,904 3,978 

Other receipts 817 665 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 31 (64,286) (51,576) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Payments 

Purchase of non-current physical assets (12,263) (6,545) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (12,263) (6,545) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (7,257) 1,572 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 19,568 17,997 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 31 12,311 19,569 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Arts Industry 
Support 

Record Keeping 
and Archival 

Services 

Services provided 
to external 

agencies 

Total 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

COST OF SERVICES 

Expenses 

Employee benefits expense 3,922 5,197  2,098  2,241 10,309 6,901 16,329 14,339 

Supplies and services 1,231 2,115 173 246 3,439 3,348 4,843 5,709 

Depreciation and 
amortisation expense - 176 46  84 1,250 962 1,296 1,222 

Accommodation expenses 0 410 45 138 3,542 2,241 3,587 2,789 

Grants and subsidies 27,094 27,378 - 166 7,423 4,540 34,517 32,084 

Loss on disposal of non-
current assets 0 - - -  30 - 30 - 

Other expenses 3 289 4  62  148 1,552 155 1,903 

Total cost of services 32,250 35,565 2,366 2,937 26,141 19,544 60,757 58,046 

Income 

User charges & fees - 24 90  140  214 129 304 293 

Commonwealth grants and 
contributions 425 389 - - - 425 389 

Other revenue 112 109 126  22 582 579 820 710 

Total Income other than 
Income from State 
Government 

537 522 216 162 796 708 1,549 1,392 

NET COST OF SERVICES 31,713 35,043 2,150 2,775 25,345 18,836 59,208 56,654 

Income from State 
Government 

Service Appropriation 30,102 32,431 1,910 2,837 19,740 18,112 51,752 53,380 

Royalties for Regions Fund 2,825 - - -  50 - 2,875

Grants and subsidies from 
State Government 55 250 - - 125 - 180 250 

Assets / Liabilities Assumed 
(Transferred) - 995 - 199 - 5,437 6,631 

Services received free of 
charge - 99 - 19 1 541 785 659 

Total Income from State 
Government 32,982 33,775 1,910 3,055 20,700 24,090 55,592 60,920 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE 
PERIOD 1,269 (1,268) (240) 280  (4,645) 5,255 (3,616) 4,266 

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service 
as at 30 June 2015 

Arts Industry 
Support 

Recordkeeping and 
Archival Services 

Services provided to 
external agencies 

Total 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Assets 

Current Assets 2,219 3,213 427 619 11,676 16,907 14,322 20,739 

Non-Current Assets 11,841 9,501 2,281 4,559 62,310 51,011 76,433 65,071 

Total assets 14,060 12,714  2,709  5,178  73,986 67,918  90,755  85,810 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 2,426 3,439 467 690 12,765 18,730 15,658 22,859 

Non-Current Liabilities 250 162 48 32 1,315 883 1,613 1,077 

Total Liabilities 2,676 3,601 515 722 14,080 19,613 17,271 23,936 

NET ASSETS 11,385 9,113 2,193 4,456 59,906 48,305 73,484 61,874 

The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Summary of Consolidated Account 
Appropriations and Income Estimates 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 
Estimate 

$'000 

2015 
Actual 

$'000 

Variance 
$'000 

2015 
Actual 

$'000 

2014 
Actual 

$'000 

Variance 
$'000 

DELIVERY OF SERVICES 

Item 62 Net amount appropriated to 
deliver services 

35,337 35,758 421 35,758 38,319 (2,561) 

Amount Authorised by Other Statutes: 

- Lotteries Commission Act 1990 15,456 15,725 269 15,725 14,800 925 

- Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 269 269 - 269 261 8 

Total appropriations provided to deliver 
services 

51,062 51,752 690 51,752 53,380 (1,628) 

CAPITAL 

Item 150 Capital appropriations 21,300 14,300 (7,000) 14,300 8,226 6,074 

21,300 14,300 (7,000) 14,300 8,226 6,074 

GRAND TOTAL 72,362 66,052 (6,310) 66,052 61,606 4,446 

Details of Expenses by Service 

Arts Industry Support 33,130 32,250 (880) 32,250 35,565 (3,315) 

Recordkeeping and Archival Services 2,238 2,366 128 2,366 2,937 (571) 

Services provided to external agencies 15,694 26,141 10,447 26,141 19,544 6,597 

Total Cost of Services 51,062 60,757 9,695 60,757 58,046 2,711 

Less total income (118) (1,549) (1,431) (1,549) (1,392) (157) 

Net Cost of Services 50,944 59,208 8,264 59,208 56,654 2,554 

Adjustments 118 (7,456) (7,574) (7,456) (3,274) (4,182) 

Total appropriations provided to deliver 
services 

51,062 51,752 690 51,752 53,380 (1,628) 

Capital Expenditure 

Purchase of non-current physical assets 21,300 14,300 (7,000) 14,300 8,226 6,074 

Capital Contribution (appropriation) 21,300 14,300 (7,000) 14,300 8,226 6,074 

Note 36 'Explanatory statement' provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results 
for 2015 and between the actual results for 2015 and 2014. 

DCA Annual Report 2014-15  |  82 



Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards 

General 

The Department’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards. The term 'Australian Accounting Standards' includes Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). 

The Department has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their 
operative dates. 

Early adoption of standards 

The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 
Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of 
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Department for 
the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2015. 

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) General statement 

The Department is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and 
other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer's instructions. Several of these are 
modified by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording. 

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s instructions impose legislative provisions that  govern the 
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB. 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, 
details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements 

(b) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost 
convention, except for land, buildings and infrastructure which have been measured at fair value.  

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied 
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand 
dollars ($'000).  

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have 
been made in the process of applying the Department’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect 
on amounts recognised in the financial statements.  

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future, and other 
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year 

(c) Reporting entity 

The reporting entity comprises the Department of Culture and the Arts. The Department has no related bodies. 
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The Department’s mission is to provide leadership, support and services to ensure that Western Australians have 
easy and affordable access to a diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences. 
 
The Department is predominantly funded by Parliamentary appropriations. The Department is supplemented by 
fees received for the provision of services that are charged out on a full cost recovery basis. The fees charged are 
determined by prevailing market forces. The financial statements encompass all funds through which the 
Department controls resources to carry on its functions 

Services 

The Department provides the following services: 

• Service 1: Arts Industry Support 

To provide an integrated and unifying means of delivering policy and programs that will assist in the 
development of creative people, communities, economies and environments for the public of Western 
Australia. 

• Service 2: Recordkeeping and Archival Services 

• Service 3: Services to external agencies 

Ensures that corporate services are delivered to agencies within the Culture and Arts portfolio. 

(d) Contributed equity 

AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in 
the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be 
designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before 
such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as 
contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have 
been credited directly to Contributed equity. 

The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative 
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-
reciprocal. Refer also to note 30 "Equity'. 

(e) Income 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.  Revenue is 
recognised for the major business activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services 

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. 

Service Appropriations 

Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Department gains 
control of the appropriated funds.  The Department gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are 
deposited to the bank account or credited to the 'Amounts receivable for services' (holding account) held at 
Treasury. 
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Net Appropriation Determination 

The Treasurer may make a determination providing for prescribed receipts to be retained for services under the 
control of the Department.  In accordance with the determination specified in the 2014-2015 Budget Statements, 
the Department retained $1.45 million in 2015 ($1.41 million in 2014) from the following: 
 
•      proceeds from fees and charges; 
•      Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions; and 
•      other departmental revenue. 

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Department obtains control over the assets comprising the 
contributions, usually when cash is received. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. 
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would 
be purchased if not donated. 

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the Department obtains 
control over the funds.  The Department obtains control of the funds at the time the funds are deposited into the 
Department’s bank account. 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of 
non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 

(f) Property, plant and equipment  

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment and infrustructure costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the 
cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment and 
infrustructure costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total). 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment and infrustructure are initially recognised at cost. 

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the 
date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used the for the measurement of land and 
buildings and infrustructure and historical cost for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are 
carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings and infrustructure only) and accumulated 
impairment losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Where market based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of 
current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions. When buildings are revalued by 
reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. 

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing 
use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use 
buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset, ie. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the 
depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated 
proportionately. Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with 
similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted 
use land). 
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Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from 
the asset’s fair value at the end of the reporting period.  

Refer also to note 23 'Property, plant and equipment' for further information on revaluations. 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply 
the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. Professional judgement by the valuer is 
required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use 
assets. 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to 
that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets 
as described in note 23 'Property, plant and equipment'. 

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a 
manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful 
lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Buildings     40 years 

Leasehold improvements 40 years 

Plant and equipment  5 to 10 years 

Computer hardware and software (a) 4 years 

Furniture and fittings 10 years 

Collections 0 to 100 years 

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware  

Works of art controlled by the Department are classified as property, plant and equipment. These are anticipated 
to have indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the 
reporting period and so no depreciation has been recognised. 

Land is not depreciated. 

(g) Intangible assets 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 
or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred 
below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit 
(estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the 
Department have a finite useful life and zero residual value. 
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The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

Licences up to 10 years 

Development Costs 3 to 5 years 

Software (a) 3 to 5 years 

Website costs 3 to 5 years 

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of related hardware. 

Licences  

Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Development costs 

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward 
when the future economic benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely to 
exceed $50,000. Other development costs are expensed as incurred.  

Computer Software 

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, plant and equipment. Software 
that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset. Software costing less than 
$5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

Website costs 

Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or 
development of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility 
studies during the planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase 
are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a website that can be reliably measured, are capitalised to 
the extent that they represent probable future economic benefits. 

(h) Impairment of assets 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of 
each reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where 
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 
the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written 
down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. 
As the Department is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, 
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of 
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of 
consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling 
replacement costs. 

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment 

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the 
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have 
no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair 
value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the 
recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. 
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(i) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale 

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other assets in the Statement of Financial Position. Assets 
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised. 

(j) Leases 

Finance lease rights and obligations are initially recognised, at the commencement of the lease term, as assets 
and liabilities equal in amount to the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 
lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease. The assets are disclosed as plant, equipment and 
vehicles under lease, and are depreciated over the period during which the Department is expected to benefit 
from their use. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the 
outstanding lease liability, according to the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

Operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits 
derived from the leased properties 

(k) Financial instruments 

In addition to cash, the Department has two categories of financial instrument: 

• Loans and receivables; and 

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

Financial Assets 

• Cash and cash equivalents 

• Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

• Receivables  

• Amounts Receivable for Services 

Financial Liabilities 

• Payables 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the 
transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no 
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 

(l) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash 
equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

(m) Accrued salaries 

Accrued salaries (see note 27 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial 
year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The Department considers the 
carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (refer to note 19 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’) consists of 
amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a period of 10 financial years to largely meet the additional 
cash outflow in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on 
this account. 
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(n) Amounts receivable for services (holding account) 

The Department receives funding on an accrual basis. The appropriations are paid partly in cash and partly as an 
asset (holding account receivable). The holding account receivable balance, resulting from service appropriation 
funding, is accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset 
replacement. 

Refer to note 18 ‘Income from State Government’ and note 21 ’Amounts receivable for services’. 

(o) Receivables 

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for uncollectible amounts 
(i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified 
as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful 
debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Department will not be able to collect the debts. The 
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. 

(p) Payables 

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Department becomes obliged to make future 
payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as 
settlement is generally within 30 days. 

(q) Provisions 

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period. 

Provisions - Employee Benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the 
reporting period. 

Annual leave 

The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is 
recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.  

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the reporting period and is therefore 
considered to be 'other long-term employee benefits'. The annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the 
present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate 
expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels 
including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of 
employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at 
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Department does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 

Long Service Leave 

Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is 
recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled 
using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels 
including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of 
employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at 
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the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Department does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the 
Department has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed 
the requisite years of service. 

A liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed four years of service based on 
remuneration rates current as at the end of the reporting period. 

An actuarial assessment of long service leave undertaken by PriceWaterHouseCoopers Actuaries at 30 June 2014 
determined that the liability measured using the short-hand measurement technique above was not materially 
different from the liability determined using the present value of expected future payments. This calculation is 
consistent with the Department’s experience of employee retention and leave taken. 

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Department does not have an 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period. Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because 
the Department has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has 
completed the requisite years of service. 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector 
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements.  Eligibility criteria 
for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees varies according to commencement and 
implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members 
since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new 
members since 1995. 

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme 
or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees 
commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 
March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees became able to choose their preferred 
superannuation fund provider. The Department makes contributions to GESB or other fund provider on behalf of 
employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 
1992. Contributions to these accumulated schemes extinguish the Department's liability for superannuation 
charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS 

The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge is paid by the Department to 
the GESB, are defined contribution schemes. The liabilities for current service superannuation charges under the 
GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS are extinguished by the concurrent payment of employer contributions to the GESB. 

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, 
it is a defined contribution plan for Department purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined 
contributions) made by the Department to GESB extinguishes the Department’s obligations to the related 
superannuation liability. 

The Department has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded Pension 
Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributed to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, 
are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the 
Department to the GESB.  

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from the 
Treasurer for the employer’s share. 

Refer to note 2(r) 'Superannuation Expense'. 
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Provisions - other 

Employment On-Costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised 
separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-
costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of the Department’s ‘Employee 
benefits expense’. The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’. 

(r) Superannuation expense 

Superannuation expense is recognised in the profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for defined 
contribution plans, including the concurrent payment of employer contributions to the GSS scheme, as and when 
the contributions fall due. 

For defined benefit plans (the Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer component of the GSS), changes in the 
defined benefit obligation are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income either in profit or loss, or, 
other comprehensive income as follows: 

• profit or loss: 

   ◦ current service cost; 

   ◦ past service cost; and 

   ◦ interest cost. 

• other comprehensive income: 

   ◦ actuarial gains and losses.  

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises of employer contributions 
paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the WSS, the GESBS, and other superannuation funds. 

(s) Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 

Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost, that the Department would otherwise purchase if not 
donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets or services where they can be reliably measured. 
A corresponding expense is recognised for services received.  Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Position. 

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income from 
State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(t) Comparative figures 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the 
current financial year. 

Note 3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies  

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of 
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The 
Department evaluates these judgements regularly. 

Operating lease commitment 

The Department has entered into a commercial lease for office accommodation and it has determined that the 
lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly, the lease has been 
classified as an operating lease. 
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Note 4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year. 

Long Service Leave 

Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Department's long service leave provision include 
expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in 
these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 

Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 

The Department has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2014 that impacted on the Department: 

Int 21 Levies 

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy 
imposed should be recognised.  There is no financial impact for the Authority at reporting 
date. 

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, introducing a 
number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Model Authority as it does 
not impact accounting for related bodies and the Authority has no interests in other entities 

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, 
introduces new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, which are 
more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. There is 
no financial impact for the Model Authority as the new standard continues to require the 
recognition of the Authority’s share of assets and share of liabilities for the unincorporated joint 
operation. 

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements in AASB 127 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments in Associates and 
AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. 
There is no financial impact. 

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier standard whilst 
retaining accounting and disclosure requirements for the preparation of separate financial 
statements.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of 
clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership interest. 
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Model Authority as it does 
not hold investments in associates and joint ventures 
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AASB 1031 Materiality 

This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance on 
materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other Australian 
pronouncements.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint 
Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 
1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17] 

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, 
AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures.  There is no financial impact for the Model Authority. 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities [AASB 132] 

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in 
applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a 
legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be 
considered equivalent to net settlement.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets.   

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation 
of Hedge Accounting [AASB 139] 

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances where a 
derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated from one 
counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations.  The Model 
Authority does not routinely enter into derivatives or hedges, therefore there is no financial 
impact 

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for 
Not for Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049]. 

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining 
whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial returns are not a key 
attribute of the investor’s relationship.  The Standard has no financial impact in its own right, 
rather the impact results from the adoption of the amended AASB 10. 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and 
Financial Instruments. 

Part B of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the 
deletion of references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2014. It has no financial impact 

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

Part A of this Standard consists primarily of clarifications to Accounting Standards and has no 
financial impact for the Department. Part B of this Standard has no financial impact as the 
Department contributes to schemes that are either defined contribution plans, or deemed to 
be defined contribution plans.  Part C of this Standard has no financial impact as it removes 
references to AASB 1031 Materiality from a number of Accounting Standards. 

Voluntary changes in accounting policy 

The Department did not make any voluntary changes to its Accounting Policy in 2014-15. 
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Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 

Standard Description Operative for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning 
on/after 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 
after being amended by AASB 2012 6, AASB 2013 9, and, AASB 2014 1 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards.  The Authority has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

This Standard establishes the principles that the Department shall apply to 
report useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, 
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a 
contract with a customer. The Department has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jul 2017 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 
(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 
128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in 
December 2010. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by 
AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018.  The Authority has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial Instruments. 

Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 
January 2017 (Part C).  The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently 
deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014 1.  The Authority has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9. 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential 
amendments to other Standards. It has not yet been assessed by the 
Department to determine the application or potential impact of the 
Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for 
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations [AASB 1 & 11] 

The Authority establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and 
does not routinely acquire interests in Joint Operations.  Therefore, there is 
no financial impact on application of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 
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AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarification of 
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138] 

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Model 
Authority as depreciation and amortisation is not determined by reference 
to revenue generation, but by reference to consumption of future 
economic benefits. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15. 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the issuance 
of AASB 15. The Department has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 
(December 2014). 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the issuance 
of AASB 9 (December 2014). The Department has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 2014-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 
(December 2014) – Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 
(December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)] 

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
(December 2009) and AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010), 
arising from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 2014. 
The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 2014-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Equity Method in 
Separate Financial Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 128] 

This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially amends AASB 1 and 
AASB 128, to allow entities to use the equity method of accounting for 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate 
financial statements. The Department has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2014-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Sale or Contribution of 
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture [AASB 10 & 
128]. 

This Standard amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to address an inconsistency 
between the requirements in AASB 10 and those in AASB 128 (August 2011), 
in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its 
associate or joint venture. The Department has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 
to Australian Accounting Standards 2012–2014 Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 
110, 119, 121, 133, 134, 137 & 140] 

These amendments arise from the issuance of International Financial 
Reporting Standard Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle in 
September 2014, and editorial corrections. The Department has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 
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AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: 
Amendments to AASB 101 [AASB 7, 101, 134 & 1049] 

This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the 
disclosure requirements in AASB 101. Specifically, the Standard proposes 
narrow-focus amendments to address some of the concerns expressed 
about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure 
entities are able to use judgement when applying a Standard in 
determining what information to disclose in their financial statements. There 
is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the 
Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality. 

This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, allowing that 
Standard to effectively be withdrawn. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2015 

AASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party 
Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 1049]. 

The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application by 
not-for-profit public sector entities. Implementation guidance is included to 
assist application of the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities. The 
Department has not yet determined the application of the Standard, 
though there is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 

Note 6. Machinery of Government Change 

Effective from 1 July 2013, the Culture and the Arts portfolio arrangements were adjusted to return employing 
authority to the relevant statutory bodies (by delegation from the Director General), along with budget 
appropriation for salaries. 

The statutory authorities are: 

• Art Gallery of Western Australia 

• Western Australian Museum 

• Perth Theatre Trust 

• State Library of Western Australia 

This had following impact: 

Employee benefits which were previously appropriated to the Department of Culture and the Arts are now being 
appropriated direct to the statutory authorities. This has resulted in a reduction in both employee benefits expenses 
and service appropriation 

The leave liabilities as well as leave holding account balances with Treasury WA relating to the statutory authorities 
were transferred to each authority from the Department respectively, made up as follows: 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Accrued salaries 27th pay holding account with Treasury WA.  - (1,156) 

Leave liabilities holding account with Treasury WA.  - (1,517) 

Annual leave and long service leave liabilities provisions.  - 9,356 

 

- 6,683 
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Note 7. Employee benefits expense  

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Wages and salaries (a) 11,978 10,271 

Leave 2,663 2,407 

Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 1,485 1,402 

Other related expenses 203 259 

 

16,329 14,339 

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave 
entitlements including superannuation contribution component. 

(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESBS and other eligible funds. 

Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers’ compensation insurance, are included at note 12 ‘Other 
expenses’. Employment on-costs liability is included at note 28 ‘Provisions’. Please also refer to note 6. 

Note 8. Supplies and services 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Communication Services 189 217 

Freight & Mail Services 28 35 

Computing & IT related equipment 573 376 

Labour Hire/Temporary Personnel 439 468 

Professional & Administrative Services 1,947 2,647 

Consulting Services 211 295 

Consumables 91 146 

Repairs & Maintenance 97 66 

Travel 154 186 

Entertainment 44 45 

Insurance & licences 368 460 

Operating Lease, Rental & Hire Costs 482 533 

Other  264 280 

Other  221 234 

 

4,843 5,709 

Note 9. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Depreciation 
  Buildings 609 682 

Plant, Equipment & Vehicles 211 225 

Total depreciation 820 907 

Amortisation 
  Intangible Assets 476 315 

Total amortisation 476 315 

Total depreciation and amortisation 1,296 1,222 
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Note 10. Accomodation expenses 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Property 1,285 1,031 

Accom Repairs & Maintenance 359 224 

Minor Works 472 14 

Utilities 128 145 

Lease Rental - Buildings 1,331 1,364 

Other  12 11 

 

3,587 2,789 

Note 11. Grants and subsidies 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Major Performing Arts Companies 8,936 9,110 

Arts Refurbishment Projects 242 375 

Major Arts Agencies 15,506 17,438 

Creative Regions 2,410 - 

ScreenWest 2,500 2,000 

Bell Tower Foundation 285 245 

Minor Works 4,638 2,672 

Other - 244 

  34,517 32,084 

Note 12. Other expenses 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Audit fees (a) 72 80 

Bad debts 81 - 

Refund of Revenue from Prior Years (b) - 1,815 

Other  2 8 

 

155 1,903 

(a)  Refer also to note 39 Remuneration of auditor. 

(b) During the year 2014 unspent funding of $1,814,662 initially received by the Department for the Francis Street Decommissioning 
project was refunded to Treasury Department. 

Note 13. User charges and fees 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

User Charges & Fees 217 213 

Fees 87 80 

 

302 293 
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Note 14. Commonwealth grants and contributions 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Commonwealth Grants 425 389 

 

425 389 

Breakdown of Commonweath Grants 
  1.       Indigenous Visual Arts Program - 92 

2.       Partnership initiatives Performing Lines Project 50 50 

3.       Indian Ocean Territories (Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) Islands 85 50 

4.       Australian Council Artist in Residence Initiative 290 197 

  425 389 

Note 15. Interest Revenue 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Interest revenue - 1 

 
- 1 

Note 16. Other revenue 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Insurance claims recoveries - 8 

Rentals 177 196 

Refunds - 3 

Recoups 444 404 

Grants and subsidies revenue 150 39 

Recoveries 28 40 

Others  21 19 

 

820 709 

Note 17. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 
  Plant, equipment and vehicles - - 

Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed 
  Plant, equipment and vehicles 30 - 

Net gain/(loss) (30) - 
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Note 18. Income from State Government 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Appropriation received during the period (a): 
  Service Appropriations - General 36,027 38,319 

Service Appropriations - Amt Auth Stat 15,725 15,061 

  51,752 53,380 

  
  Royalties for Regions Fund 2,875 - 

 

2,875 0 

  
  Grants and subsidies from State Government (b)

 180 250 

  180 250 

Assets transferred from/(to) other State government agencies during the 
period 

  Assets assumed / (transferred) (c)
 - (52) 

Leave Holding Account assumed / (transferred) (d)
 - (1,517) 

27th Pay Holding Account assumed / (transferred) (d)
 - (1,156) 

Leave liabilities (assumed) / transferred (d)
 - 9,356 

  - 6,631 

Services received free of charge from other State government agencies 
during the period (e) 

  Services received free of charge 785 659 

  785 659 

  
  

 

55,592 60,920 

 (a) Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation revenue comprises a cash 
component and a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the budgeted depreciation 
expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liabilities during the year. Please also refer to note 6. 

(b) Grants and subsidies from State Government comprise Major Touring Project for WA Opera. 

(c) Discretionary transfers of assets (including grants) and liabilities between State Government agencies are 
reported under income from State Government. Transfers of assets and liabilities in relation to a restructure of 
administrative arrangements are recognised as distribution to owners by the transferor and contribution by owners 
by the transferee under AASB 1004 in respect of net assets transferred. Other non-discretionary non-reciprocal 
transfers of assets and liabilities designated as contributions by owners under TI 955 are also recognised directly to 
equity. During 2014, the Department transferred $52,124 assets to Perth Theatre Trust. 

(d) Leave holding accounts, 27th pay holding accounts and leave liabilities assumed / (transferred) is the result of 
Machinery of Government Change. See also note 6. 

(e) During 2015, the Department of Finance provided services free of charge to the Department of Culture and the 
Arts to the total value of $756,581 (2014: $587,904) - made up of components (i) Integrated Procurement Services 
$121,774 (2014: $118,515); (ii) Government Accommodation - Leasing $61,868 (2014: $54,278); and (iii) Government 
Accommodation - Fit Out Depreciation $572,939 (2014 $415,111). In addition, State Solicitor's Office provided 
services free of charge to the Department of Culture and the Arts to the total value of $28,611 (2014: $70,712). 

See also note 6 Machinery of Government Change. 
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Note 19. Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Current 
  

Restricted Cash (a) 1,106 438 

   Royalties for Regions Fund 124 119 

Commonwealth Government grant - services to Indian Ocean Territories 143 319 

Commonwealth Government grant - Artists in residence program 94 - 

Department of Education - Arts edge evaluation 10 - 

Accrued salaries - provision for 27th pay (b) 735 - 

 

1,106 438 

Non-current 
  Accrued salaries - provision for 27th pay (b)

 - 631 

 

- 631 

(a) The Department of Culture and the Arts and the Commonwealth Government have a Service Delivery 
Arrangement for the provision of services to the Indian Ocean Territories. The Commonwealth Government recoups 
the Department the costs associated with these services (refer to note 43 'Service Delivery Arrangement)  In 
addition, there is also an agreement with Department of Regional Development for the Royalties for Regions Funds 
relating to Performing Arts Regional Tour Boost project. Unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in 
WA regional areas 

b) Funds held in the suspense account used only for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in 2015-16 that occurs 
every 11 years. Please also refer to note 6. 

Note 20. Receivables 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Current 
  Receivables 484 1,050 

GST receivable 1,090 182 

 

1,574 1,232 

Loans and advances: 
  Other debtors 0 0 

 

0 0 

Total current 1,574 1,232 

Non-current 
  Loans and advances: 
  Other debtors 75 150 

Total non-current 75 150 

Total receivables 1,650 1,382 

The Department does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables. 
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Note 21. Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account) 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Current 200 200 

Non-current 3,455 3,655 

 

3,655 3,855 

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset 
replacement or payment of leave liabilities. Please also refer to note 6. 

Note 22. Other assets 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Current 
  Prepayments 237 355 

Accrued Income - 16 

Total current 237 371 

Note 23. Property, plant and equipment 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Land 
  At fair value (a)

 22,430 22,000 

 

22,430 22,000 

Buildings 
  At fair value (a)

 29,796 29,947 

 

29,796 29,947 

Leasehold improvements 
  At cost 732 259 

Accumulated depreciation (71) (71) 

 

661 188 

Buildings under construction 
  Construction costs 13,998 4,419 

 

13,998 4,419 

Plant, equipment and vehicles 
  At cost 65 65 

Accumulated depreciation (55) (54) 

 

10 11 

Office equipment 
  At cost 1,384 1,272 

Accumulated depreciation (926) (749) 

 

458 523 

Collections 
  At cost 1,477 1,477 

Accumulated depreciation (178) (171) 

 

1,299 1,306 
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Works of art 
  At fair value 310 173 

 

310 173 

Exhibits 
  Exhibits - WIP 2,477 600 

 

2,477 600 

 

71,439 59,167 

 

(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2014 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services). The valuations were performed during the year ended 30 June 2015 and recognised at 30 
June 2015. In undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to market values for land: 
$22,430,000 (2014:$22,000,000) and buildings: $29,795,900 (2014: $29,947,109).  

For the remaining balance, fair value of land and buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated 
replacement cost and fair value of land was determined on the basis of comparison with market evidence for land 
with low level activity (high restricted use land). See note 2(f) 'Property, plant and equipment'. 

Information on fair value measurements is provided in note 24. 

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting 
period are set out in the table below:  
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2015  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Carrying 
amount at 
start of 
period 22,000 29,947 188 4,419 10 523 1,306 173 600 59,166 

Additions  - - 513 9,580 
 

139 
 

94 1,877 12,203 

Work in 
progress  - - - - - - - - - 0 

Disposals   - - (30) - - - - - - (30) 

Revaluations
  430 448 - - - - - 47 - 925 

Transfers (a)  - - - - - - - (4) - (4) 

Depreciation 
and 
amortisation - (599) (10) - - (204) (7) - - (820) 

Carrying 
amount at 
end of year  22,430 29,796 661 13,998 10 458 1,299 310 2,477 71,439 
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2014 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Carrying 
amount at 
start of 
period 21,220 30,325 195 342 12 217 1,313 173 - 53,797 

Additions - - - - - 575 - - - 575 

Work in 
progress - - - 4,077 - - - - 600 4,677 

Disposals - - -   - - - - - 0 

Revaluations 780 297 - - - - - - - 1,077 

Transfers (a) - - - - - (52) - - - (52) 

Depreciation 
and 
amortisation - (675) (7) - (1) (217) (7) - - (907) 

Carrying 
amount at 
end of year 22,000 29,947 188 4,419 10 523 1,306 173 600 59,167 

 

(a) The Department of Lands is the only agency with the power to sell Crown land.  The land is transferred to the 
Department of Lands for sale and the Authority accounts for the transfer as a distribution to owner. 

(b) Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  Where an asset measured at cost is written-down to 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where a previously revalued asset is written-
down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. 

Information on fair value measurements is provided in note 24. 

Note 24. Fair Value Measurements 

Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value at end of period 

2015 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Land (Note 23) - 22,430 - 22,430 

Buildings (Note 23) - 18,775 11,021 29,796 

 
- 41,205 11,021 52,226 

     
Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value at end of period 

2014 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Land (Note 23) - 22,000 - 22,000 

Buildings (Note 23) - 18,939 11,008 29,947 

 
- 40,939 11,008 51,947 

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period. 
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Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values 

Level 2 fair values of Non-current assets held for sale, Land and Buildings (Office Accommodation) are derived 
using the market approach.  Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and buildings (office 
accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine price per square metre. 

Non-current assets held for sale have been written down to fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value has been 
determined by reference to market evidence of sales prices of comparable assets. 

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) 

 
Land Buildings Infrastructure 

2015 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Fair Value at start of period - 11,008 - 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income  - 233 - 

Transfers (from/(to) Level 2) - (220) - 

Disposals - - - 

Depreciation Expense - - - 

Fair Value at end of period - 11,021 - 

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss, under ‘Other Gains’       

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for 
assets held at the end of the reporting period   -   

 
Land Buildings Infrastructure 

2014 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Fair Value at start of period - 11,046 - 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income - 208 - 

Transfers (from/(to) Level 2) - - - 

Disposals - - - 

Depreciation Expense - (246) - 

Fair Value at end of period - 11,008 - 

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for 
assets held at the end of the reporting period - - - 

Valuation processes 

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.   

Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that 
caused the transfer.  Transfers are generally limited to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale as 
Treasurer's instructions require valuations of land, buildings and infrastructure to be categorised within Level 3 where 
the valuations will utilise significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis. 

Fair value for existing use specialised buildings and infrastructure assets is determined by reference to the cost of 
replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost.  
Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation 
calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired economic benefit, or 
obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable) of the asset.  Current replacement cost is generally 
determined by reference to the market-observable replacement cost of a substitute asset of comparable utility 
and the gross project size specifications. 
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Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of comparable 
land that is unrestricted less restoration costs to return the site to a vacant and marketable condition (low restricted 
use land), or, comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land). 

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Department are derived and evaluated as follows: 

Historical cost per square metre floor area (m2) 

The costs of constructing specialised buildings with similar utility are extracted from financial records of the Model 
Statutory Authority, then indexed by movements in CPI. 

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset 

These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 

Selection of land with restricted utility 

Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility. 
Relevant comparators of land with low level utility are selected by the Western Australian Land Information 
Authority (Valuation Services). 

Historical cost per cubic metre (m3) 

The costs of construction of infrastructure are extracted from financial records of the Model Statutory Authority and 
indexed by movements in construction costs by quantity surveyors. 

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements 

Description and fair value 
as at 30 June 2015 
$000 

Valuation 
technique(s) 

Unobservable 
inputs 

Range of 
unobservable 
inputs (weighted 
average) 

Relationship of 
unobservable inputs to 
fair value 

BELL TOWER Building Depreciated 
Replacement 
Cost   

Historical cost per 
square metre floor 
area (m2) 

$9,955 per m2 Historical cost per m2 
increases fair value. 

 $11,021     ($9,955 per m2)   

 

        

Description and fair value 
as at 30 June 2014 
$000 

Valuation 
technique(s) 

Unobservable 
inputs 

Range of 
unobservable 
inputs (weighted 
average) 

Relationship of 
unobservable inputs to 
fair value 

BELL TOWER Building Depreciated 
Replacement 
Cost   

Historical cost per 
square metre floor 
area (m2) 

$9,955 per m2 Historical cost per m2 
increases fair value. 

$11,008      ($9,955 per m2)   

 

        

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Notes 23 and 24. 

Basis of Valuation 

In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some non-financial assets, these assets 
are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis.  The existing use basis recognises that 
restrictions or limitations have been placed on their use and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus 
to requirements.  These restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community 
service and the Department’s enabling legislation. 
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Note 25. Intangible assets 

 

2015 2014 

 

$000 $000 

Licences 
  At cost 248 248 

Accumulated amortisation (241) (48) 

 

7 200 

Computer software 
  At cost 1,197 1,108 

Computer software - WIP 611 513 

Accumulated amortisation (934) (690) 

 

874 931 

Other intangibles 
  At cost 156 156 

Other intangibles - WIP 565 279 

Accumulated amortisation (137) (98) 

 

584 337 

 

1,464 1,468 

Reconciliations: 
  Licences 
  Carrying amount at start of period 200 14 

Additions 0 213 

Amortisation expense (193) (27) 

Carrying amount at end of period 7 199 

Computer software 
  Carrying amount at start of period 931 378 

Additions 186 801 

Amortisation expense (244) (248) 

Carrying amount at end of period 873 931 

Other intangibles 
  Carrying amount at start of period 337 98 

Additions 286 279 

Amortisation expense (39) (40) 

Carrying amount at end of period 584 338 

Note 26. Impairment of assets 

There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment, infrastructure or intangible assets at 
30 June 2015. 

The Department held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.  At 
the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use. 

All surplus assets at 30 June 2015 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written-off. 
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Note 27. Payables 

Current 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Trade payables 1,526 234 

Grants payable 9,525 18,959 

Accrued expenses 497 142 

Accrued salaries 555 493 

Accrued superannuation 56 47 

Minor works payable 704 - 

Other 365 192 

 

13,227 20,067 

Note 28. Provisions 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Current 
  Employee benefits provision 
  Annual leave (a)

 816 713 

Long service leave (b)
 1,230 1,591 

Other provisions (d)
 21 57 

 

2,067 2,361 

Other provisions 
  Employment on-costs (c) 363 430 

 

363 430 

 

2,430 2,791 

Non-current 
  Employee benefits provision 
  Annual leave (a)

 274 257 

Long service leave (b)
 1,143 736 

 

1,417 993 

Other provisions 
  Employment on-costs (c)

 196 84 

 

196 84 

 

1,613 1,077 

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at 
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is 
expected to occur as follows: 

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 816 713 

More than 12 months after the reporting period 274 257 

 

1,090 970 

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement 
of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 
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2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 567 535 

More than 12 months after the reporting period 1,806 1,792 

 

2,373 2,327 

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs 
including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The 
associated expense is disclosed in note 12 ‘Other expenses’.' 

 (d) Provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement to self-
fund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside 
for employees and is measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

(e) Please also refer to note 6. 

Movements in other provisions 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than 
employee benefits, are set out below:   

Employment on-cost provision 
  Carrying amount at start of the period 514 1,675 

Additional/(reversal of) provisions required 46 (1,161) 

Carrying amount at end of period 560 514 

Note 29. Other liabilities 

Current 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Unclaimed monies 1 1 

 

1 1 

Note 30. Equity 

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Department on behalf of the community.  
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Department.  The asset revaluation surplus represents 
that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets. 

Contributed equity 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Balance at start of the period 19,756 11,530 

Contributions by owners 
  Capital appropriation 14,300 8,226 

Total contribution by owners 14,300 8,226 

   
Balance at end of period 34,056 19,756 

   Reserves 
  Asset revaluation surplus 
  Balance at start of the period 43,030 41,953 

Net revaluation increments/(decrements) 
  

• Land 430 780 

• Buildings 448 297 

• Works of Art 47 0 

Balance at end of period 43,955 43,030 
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Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 
  Balance at start of the period (911) (5,177) 

Result for the period (3,616) 4,266 

Income and expense recognised directly in equity - - 

Balance at end of period (4,527) (911) 

Total equity at end of period 73,484 61,875 

Please also refer to note 6. 

Note 31. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 

Reconciliation of cash 2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash 
Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position 
as follows:   

Cash and cash equivalents  11,204 18,499 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 19 Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents) 1,106 1,069 

 

12,310 19,568 

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) 
operating activities 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Net cost of services  (59,208) (56,654) 

Non-cash items 
  Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 9 'Depreciation and 

amortisation expense') 1,296 1,222 

Services received free of charge (note 18 'Income from State Government') 785 659 

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 17  'Net 
gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets') 30 - 

(Increase)/decrease in assets 
  Current receivables (a) 566 4,728 

Other current assets 134 (159) 

Non-current receivables 75 (18) 

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities 
  Current payables (a) (7,335) (1,811) 

Current provisions (361) 528 

Other current liabilities 104 (82) 

Non-current provisions 536 (71) 

Net GST receipts/(payments) (b) (998) - 

Change in GST in receivables/payables (c) 90 82 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (64,286) (51,576) 

(a)  Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payables in respect of GST and the 
receivables/payables in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they 
do not form part of the reconciling items 

(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions. 

(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables. 

At the end of the reporting period, the Department has fully drawn down on all financial facilities, details of which 
are disclosed in the financial statements. 
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Note 32. Services provided free of charge 

During the period the following services were provided to other agencies 
free of charge for functions outside the normal operations of the 
Department: 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

• Art Gallery of Western Australia 19 26 

• State Library of Western Australia - 120 

• Western Australian Museum (a) 76 (1,765) 

• Perth Theatre Trust 6 1 

• ScreenWest 2,192 1,314 

 

2,293 (304) 

(a) The comparative amount Includes salaries deficit funding repayment of $1,889,092 received from Western 
Australian Museum in 2013-14. 

Please also refer to note 6. 

Note 33. Commitments 

Non cancellable operating lease commitments 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:    

Within 1 year 1,935 2,767 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 7,387 14,891 

Later than 5 years 3,581 24,863 

 

12,903 42,521 

The Department has entered into a property lease which is a non-cancellable lease with a remaining term of 11 
years, with rent payable monthly in advance.  Contingent rent provisions within the lease agreement require that 
the minimum lease payments shall be increased by the lower of CPI or 4% per annum 

The commitments below are inclusive of GST. 

Capital expenditure commitments 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure 
additional to the amounts reported in the financial statements, are payable as 
follows: 

  Within 1 year 36,968 32,245 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 375,479 344,000 

Later than 5 years - 58,300 

 

412,447 434,545 

The capital expenditure commitments include amounts of $428.3 million reflecting the commitment of Treasury 
regarding the building of a New State Museum; and $6,244,696 for global maintenance. 

Other expenditure commitments 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Grant and other commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period 
but not recognised as liabilities, are payable as follows: 

  Within 1 year - - 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 21,062 37,804 

 

21,062 37,804 
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Note 34. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Contingent liabilities 

The Department is not aware of any contingent liability existing as at 30 June 2015. 

Contingent assets 

The Department is not aware of any contingent asset existing as at 30 June 2015. 

Note 35. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period 

The Department is not aware of any event occurring after balance sheet date that would materially affect the 
financial statements. 

Note 36. Explanatory Statement 

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2015 and between the actual results for 2014 and 
2015 are shown below.  Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $10 million. 

Significant variances between estimates and actuals for 2015  

Total appropriations provided to deliver services:  There was no significant variance in the total appropriations 
provided to deliver services compared to the budget estimates. 

Significant variances between actual results for 2015 and 2014 

Total appropriations provided to deliver services:  There was a decrease in service appropriation from the 
consolidated fund of $2.561m and an increase in Lotterywest funding of $925,000 compared to prior year. 

Service Expenditure 

 

2015 
Estimate 

$000 

2015 
Actual 

$000 
Variance 

 $000 

Significant variances between estimate and actual results for 2015 
   Services provided to external agencies 15,694 26,141 10,447 

Total Income 118 1,549 1,431 

Services provided to external agencies: The variance relates to carry over portfolio global maintenance 
expenditure and portfolio depreciation expense allocations 

Total Income:  Total income was higher due to higher than expected recoups and  third party grants and subsidies 
revenue. 

 

2015 
Estimate 

$000 

2014 
Actual 

$000 
Variance 

 $000 

Significant variances between actual results for 2015 and 2014 
   Services provided to external agencies 26,141 19,545 6,596 

The variance relates to carry over portfolio  global maintenance expenditure and portfolio depreciation expense 
allocations.   

Capital appropriation 

 

2015 
Estimate 

$000 

2015 
Actual 

$000 
Variance 

 $000 

Significant variances between estimate and actual results for 2015 
   New State Museum project 21,500 14,000 7,500 

The variance is due to the New State Museum Project deferred funding of $7,000,000 re-scheduled to later years. 
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2015 
Estimate 

$000 

2014 
Actual 

$000 
Variance 

 $000 

Significant variances between actual results for 2015 and 2014    

New State Museum project 12,919 8,226 4,693 

The business case for the New Museum for Western Australia was endorsed by government and a commitment to 
fund the project was made in the 2012-13 State Budget. The Project Definition Planning phase was completed in 
2013-14 and the project has now moved to delivery phase.  All directly attributable project costs are being 
capitalised. 

Note 37. Financial instruments 

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Financial instruments held by the Department are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash 
equivalents, loans and receivables, payables, WATC/Bank borrowings, finance leases, and Treasurer’s advances.  
The Department has limited exposure to financial risks.  The Department’s overall risk management program 
focuses on managing the risks identified below. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Department’s receivables defaulting on their contractual 
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Department. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised 
financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in 
the table at note 37(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 20 ‘Receivables’. 

Credit risk associated with the Department’s financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amounts 
receivable for services (holding account).  For receivables other than government, the Department trades only 
with recognised, creditworthy third parties.  The Department has policies in place to ensure that sales of products 
and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.  In addition, receivable balances are 
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Department’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.  At the end 
of the reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises when the Department is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Department 
is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. The Department has appropriate 
procedures to manage cash flows including drawdown of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to 
ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the 
Department’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The Department does not trade in 
foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. 

(b) Categories of financial instruments 

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of 
the reporting period are: 

 

2015 2014 

 

$000 $000 

Financial Assets 
  Cash and cash equivalents 11,205 18,499 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,106 1,069 

Loans and receivables(a) 4,214 5,055 
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Financial Liabilities 
  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (13,226) (20,067) 

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable). 

(c) Financial Instrument Disclosures 

Credit risk 

The following table discloses the Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of 
financial assets.  The Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the 
carrying amount of financial assets as shown below.  The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past 
due but not impaired and impaired financial assets.  The table is based on information provided to senior 
management of the Department. The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit 
enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds. 

Ageing Analysis of financial assets 

 

Carrying 
Amount 

$'000 

Not past 
due and 

not 
impaired 

$'000 

Past due but not impaired 

Impaired 
financial 

assets 
$'000 

Up to1 
month 

$'000 

1-3 
months 

$'000 

3 months 
to1 year 

$'000 
1-5 years 

$'000 

More 
than 5 
years 
$'000 

2015 
        Cash and 

cash 
equivalents 11,205 11,205 - - - - - - 

Restricted 
cash and 
cash 
equivalents 1,106 1,106 - - - - - - 

Receivables 
(a) 484 294 1 12 5 172 - - 

Loans and 
advances 75 75 - - - - - - 

Amounts 
receivable 
for services 3,655 3,655 - - - - - - 

  16,525 16,335 1 12 5 172 0 - 

2014 
        Cash and 

cash 
equivalents 18,499 18,499 - - - - - - 

Restricted 
cash and 
cash 
equivalents 1,069 1,069 - - - - - - 

Receivables 
(a) 1,078 73 264 45 440 255 1 - 

Loans and 
advances 150 150 - - - - - - 

Amounts 
receivable 
for services 3,855 3,855 - - - - - - 

 

24,651 23,646 264 45 440 255 1 - 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure 

The following table details the Department’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of 
financial assets and financial liabilities.  The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows.  The 
interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 2015 

   Interest rate exposure  Maturity dates 
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2015 
           Financial 

Assets 
           Cash and 

cash 
equivalents 

 
11,205 - - 11,205 11,205 11,205 - - - - 

Restricted 
cash and 
cash 
equivalents 

 
1,106 - - 1,106 1,106 1,106 - - - - 

Receivables 
(a) 

 
484 - - 484 484 295 12 5 172 - 

Loans and 
advances 

 
75 - - 75 75 - - 

 
75 - 

Amounts 
receivable 
for services 

 
3,655 - - 3,655 3,655 - - 200 3,455 - 

  

16,525 - - 16,525 16,525 12,606 12 205 3,702 - 

            Financial 
Liabilities 

           Payables 
 

3,702 - - 3,702 3,702 3,702 - - - - 

Grants and 
loans 
payable 

 
9,525 - - 9,525 9,525 9,525 - - - - 

  

13,227 - - 13,227 13,227 13,227 - - - - 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
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Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 2014 

   Interest rate exposure  Maturity dates 
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2014 
           Financial 

Assets 
           Cash and 

cash 
equivalents 

 
18,499 - - 18,499 18,499 18,499 - - - - 

Restricted 
cash and 
cash 
equivalents 

 
1,069 - - 1,069 1,069 438 - - 631 - 

Receivables 
(a) 

 
1,078 - - 1,078 1,078 338 45 440 255 - 

Loans and 
advances 

 
150 - - 150 150 - - 

 
150 - 

Amounts 
receivable 
for services 

 
3,855 - - 3,855 3,855 - - 200 3,655 - 

  

24,651 - - 24,651 24,651 19,275 45 640 4,691 - 

            Financial 
Liabilities 

           Payables 
 

1,108 - - 1,108 1,108 1,108 - - - - 

Grants and 
loans 
payable 

 
18,959 - - 18,959 18,959 18,959 - - - - 

  

20,067 - - 20,067 20,067 20,067 - - - - 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
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Note 38. Remuneration of senior officers 

The number of senior officers, whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits 
for the financial year fall within the following bands are: 

 
2015 2014 

40,001 - 50,000 1 - 

60,001 - 70,000 1 - 

70,001 - 80,000 1 - 

110,001 – 120,000 1 - 

100,001 – 110,001 1 - 

150,001 - 160,000 1 1 

160,001 - 170,000 4 - 

180,001 - 190,000 - 1 

190,001 - 200,000 - 1 

200,001 - 210,000 1 - 

270,001 - 280,000 - 1 

400,001 - 410,000 1 - 

 

$000 $000 

Base remuneration and superannuation 1,622 755 

Annual leave and long service leave accruals 165 26 

Other benefits 34 34 

Total remuneration of senior officers 1,822 815 

Total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Department in respect of senior officers. 
 

Note 39. Remuneration of auditor 

 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance indicators 66 63 
 

Note 40. Related bodies 

The Department has no related bodies. 

Note 41. Affiliated bodies 

The Department provides grants to non-government affiliated bodies for administrative support.  In accordance 
with Treasurer's Instruction 951, the details of financial assistance provided to the non-government affiliated bodies 
are shown in the table below.  A full list showing details of all grants provided to non-government bodies has been 
included in the grants lists attached to and forming part of the annual report.     

 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Art on the Move 695 455 

Stages (WA Playrights’ consortium) 122 80 

Writing WA 290 163 

 1,107 698 
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Note 42. Special purpose accounts 

Special Purpose Account – section 16(1)(b) of FMA 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Arts Lotteries Trust Account   

Balance at the start of the year - - 

Receipts 15,456 14,800 

Payments (15,456) (14,800) 

Balance at the end of the year 0 0 

Note 43. Supplementary financial information 

(a) Write offs 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

During the financial year nil (2014: $Nil) in bad debts was written off under the 
authority of:   

The accountable authority 81 - 

 81 0 

(b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes   

There were no losses through theft, defaults and other causes   

(c) Gifts of public property   

There were no gifts of public property provided by the Department   

Note 44. Service Delivery Arrangement 

The Department of Culture and the Arts and the Commonwealth Government have entered into a Service 
Delivery Arrangement for the provision of services to the Indian Ocean Territories (Christmas and Cocos [Keeling] 
Islands). In addition, there is also a Service Delivery Agreement with Commonwealth Government for the provision 
of services to the Arts In Residence; and State Government for the provision of services funded by Department of 
Regional Development The receipts and payments are as below: 

 
2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Balance at the start of the year 237 515 

Receipts 700 170 

Payments (611) (448) 

Balance at the end of the year 326 237 
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